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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be
attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to
forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional
and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal means of information dissemination
on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally
required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED. The Directors
of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRERSE

Dear Shareholders,

Through a very tough year in 2007, we dealt with the
significant business challenges, while continuing to position
the Company for integrated R&D service leadership in China.
To capitalize on the industry consolidation and international
outsourcing opportunities, we greatly strengthened our
activities in the capital market. Responding to the challenges
has made us more efficient, more cohesive and resilient, more
aware of our strengths. We are on course and moving forward,
well positioned for sustained, long-term profitable growth for
the benefit of all shareholders.

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2007

We achieved the following accomplishments in one of the

toughest years of the Chinese healthcare industry:

e Maintaining a leading position in China in new drug
applications and in clinical trial studies;

e Becoming the first Chinese company to issue 15 million
CHF Convertible Notes in Switzerland;

e Awarded as 2007 Frost & Sullivan Best CRO in Asia:
Competitive Strategy Award;

e Awarded as a Top Ten Healthy and Harmonious

Enterprises in China;

e The market cap up 220% at year-end versus year-end
2006.
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FISCAL 2007 IN REVIEW

China’s healthcare infrastructure continues to modernize. The
industry has been aggressively shaken up in recent years,
following the implementation of a series of government-
initiated structural reforms, such as putting forward healthcare
reform, separating the function of administration and
enterprise, revamping the regulations on standards and norms
for Good Clinical Practice (GCP) and Good Manufacturing
Practice (GMP), conducting anti-bribery policy and price
cutting policy, etc. To implement common pharmaceutical
development parameters in a manner consistent with world-
class standards, will benefit the industry in the long, but has
significant impact on the performance of normal operation of
pharmaceutical companies in China in the short term.

As the implementation of anti-corruption activities led to a
suspension in approving new drugs by the relevant authority
and also the industry-wide rectification from 2006 to 2007,
the Group which focuses on the R&D of new drugs, has

encountered an irresistible impact.

The healthcare industry was severely hit by these rectification
policies and regulations in 2007. For example, the Head of
China’s State Food and Drug Administration (SFDA), along
with dozens of senior officials, were sentenced to jail for
corruption in 2007. The number of applications approved by
SFDA in 2007 dropped by 90% compared with that of the
previous year. Hundreds of pharmaceutical companies ran
out of business due to these policy changes. The Drug
Registration Regulation was finally promulgated by the SFDA
and became effective from 1 October 2007. The promulgation
of the new regulation has sent a positive signal that the
Chinese pharmaceutical industry will bottom up in 2008.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRERSE

The Company’s financial performance was negatively
impacted by these challenges, causing steep decline in
revenues and earnings, as the unfinished projects were slow
in revenue recognition and the awarding of some important
new contracts was delayed. Revenues dropped to
approximately RMB38,728,862 in 2007, a 32% decrease over
2006. The net profits decreased to RMB1,099,652, down
93% from 2006. Earnings per share for 2007 were RMBO0.44
cents, a 983% decrease over the RMB4.32 cents reported for
2006.

The true test of a company is the way it responds to adversity.
The hurdles of the past year have tested our mettle, but our
people have shown they can rise to the occasion. All
operations are in good shape, clients’ needs are being met
with vigor. In 2007, the Company continued to maintain the
leading position in R&D in terms the number of new product
and clinical study applications. The Company won the 2007
Frost & Sullivan Award for Competitive Strategy Leadership
Award, ranking No. 1 among all CRO participants in China,
demonstrating the Company’s competitiveness and
international recognition. The market cap of the Company

was up 220% at year-end versus year-end 2006.
INVESTING IN OUR FUTURE

In order to achieve sustained growth, we continued enhancing
our infrastructure with state-of-the-art automation and
information technology systems across our Company. In order
to pursue our global vision and achieve size and scale of
operations, we also invested significantly in international
business development to expand our global footprint, including

acquisition.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRERSE

To evaluate opportunities for acquisition of pharmaceutical
assets, which, in addition to building size and scale, can
expand the Company’s therapeutic width by entering into
new segments which are not already a part of the Company’s
portfolio. This will also strengthen the existing therapeutic
areas where are currently sub-scale. We expect our clients
to gradually embrace more full service outsourcing and our
mission is to deliver real added value through effective
integrated project management services.

To achieve the capital restructuring and broaden the investor
base, the Company successfully issued an aggregate amount
of 15 million CHF convertible notes on 10 September 2007,
which was solely underwritten by Banque Heritage, a Swiss
financial corporation offering a broad range of banking
services including asset management, financial products and
underwriting. It is the first time for a Chinese enterprise to
issue the convertible notes in Switzerland, stirring up the

investment enthusiasm of European investors in China.

The Company has been negotiating acquisition of overseas
CROs. This “hybrid” model of preserving the best elements
of Western CRO’s i.e., intellectual design, proprietary
technologies, QA/QC, sales and marketing and client interface,
with the best of the Eastern CRO’s i.e., high quality human
and physical capital, fast turn-around times, low cost base,
etc., will win in the international competition. We have been

investing for growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRERSE

CAPITALIZING ON A RISING TIDE

Today’s USD15 billion biopharmaceutical outsourcing market
will continue to grow substantially in the coming years, as
pharmaceuticals and bio-tech companies are increasingly
favoring opportunities to outsource even core activities such
as R&D, due to challenges of increased complexity of clinical
programs, shrinking patent exclusivity and the mandate for
more post-marketing safety trials to study long-term effects
of already-approved medicines. Safety concerns about new
and existing products are leading to more trials being required
by regulatory agencies and larger patient numbers in such
trials. To establish a professional global outsourcing market
is a key solution to dealing with the challenges.

Therefore, greater outsourcing opportunities will be generated
for companies such as Venturepharm. Our optimism is based
on several key business dynamics.

First, China is an important and effective outsourcing partner
to global life science industry. China is ranked the top clinical
market outside the US. Besides cost advantages, China has
large “treatment naive” patient populations, attracting
international clinical trials to be conducted in China.

Second, increasingly, there is a clear shift towards a research-
based industry, focused on generating new, innovative
therapies, supported by improving intellectual property
regulations in China. In the wave of international R&D
outsourcing to China, the Chinese government is also
encouraging Chinese companies to synchronize with the world
in R&D activities. As the first research-driven Chinese
pharmaceutical company listed overseas, Venturepharm will
certainly benefit and edge in the trend.

Third, as a pioneer in the R&D services with rich international
cooperation experience, the Company is well placed to
capitalize on the changing scenario due to its inherent
strengths. Our focus will remain on our corporate imperatives:
to drive growth and profitability, to focus on our customer
and build our brand, to maximize quality and increase
capability and to develop talent and reward performance.
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Increasing outsourcing business to China is a trend that the
Company will leverage upon. In our vision, the Company will
be at the center of change across the industry and hopefully,
become an agent of this change. The Company has
established a collaborative model of drug discovery, pursuing
a more actively policy of forging both business and research
alliances, so that risks and rewards can be shared. In-
licensing, co-marketing as well as research collaborations in
new drug discovery, are some of the areas which are being
pursued actively. In this model, innovating companies will
choose to ally with knowledge leaders like Venturepharm,
with a view to not only accelerating drug development
schedules but also to achieve this at a considerably lower
cost to the stakeholders involved.

AN EXCITING FUTURE

Looking ahead, we remain confident that we will be at the
forefront in capitalizing upon the global outsourcing
opportunity as it unfolds. The Chinese pharmaceutical industry
is experiencing consolidation amongst key players, a trend
which is expected to gain momentum in the future. While
striving unceasingly to exercise strong leadership in the
industry in China, we remain firmly committed to unlocking
shareholder value through the delivery of high quality service

solutions.

Based on our strong fundamentals of innovation,
entrepreneurship and aggressive marketing skills, we are
determined to capitalize upon them and remain committed to
enhancing shareholder value, as we actively pursue our
strategy of growth through both organic and inorganic means.
To complement our expansion strategy, we are also looking
to further strengthen our service delivery through acquisition.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRERSE

Thanks to the effort and support of the Board and dedicated
people throughout the Company, we have met the challenges
and emerged with an exciting plan for 2008 to move forward
as a stronger and more determined company, well positioned
for sustained, long-term profitable growth for the benefits of
shareholders and all stakeholders. In 2008, we plan to achieve
the following milestones:

1. Key growth driver: to integrate the high quality affordable
drug discovery services from China and overseas, with
focus on both chemical and biological. It aims at building
the high capacity cost-effective drug discovery service in
China, and integrating the specialty services from
overseas CRO.

2. Key growth driver, powered by pre-clinical and clinical
trial studies. Through setting up sales and marketing
offices in North America and Europe, through global
alliance and M&A of global CRO companies, we plan to
strength our sales and marketing capability and turn the
VPS CRO from a domestic-market-focused company to
the No.1 CRO in China for global specialty pharmaceutical

and biotech companies.

3. Key growth driver, powered by compound partner model
and royalty sharing model. Through our co-financing, co-
developing and co-marketing strategy, we plan to license
in therapeutic compound pipelines from overseas into
the Chinese market, an emerging global top five market.

4. Additional funding to fuel our global expanding strategy
through M&A.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEE & &SN

As the implementation of anti-corruption activities led to a
suspension in approving new drugs by the relevant authority
and also the industry-wide rectification from 2006 to 2007,
the Group, which focuses on the R&D of new drugs, has

encountered an irresistible impact.

There have been substantial changes and corrections in the
Chinese pharmaceutical industry since 2006. The unveiling
of scandals surrounding the State Food and Drug
Administration of the Chinese government gave rise to a
special rectification on all aspects of the pharmaceutical
market, including the R&D, production, distribution and usage
of pharmaceutical products, which resulted in a wide range
of deep and unprecedented impact on the industry. The
special rectification actions on regulating the order of
pharmaceutical market, which were kicked off in July 2006,
had lasted for a year and a half and came to an end by the
end of 2007. Drug approval was basically suspended during
the period of rectification on the R&D, production, distribution
and usage of drugs, which led to supervised withdrawal of
7,999 applications for drug registration. Besides, there were
cancellation or revocation of 1,604 drug approvals and
registration certificates for medical appliances. In addition,
157 certificates of good manufacturing practices (GMP) were
revoked while over 370 enterprises engaged in manufacturing
of drugs and medical appliances were suspended for
rectification and 27 drug and medical appliance production
permits were rescinded. In 2007, there were a total of over
1,000 approved applications for registration, which were only
one tenth of the total number before such rectification.
Currently, there are over 25,000 registration applications
pending for approval.

HRRBREAESHRH _TTRFE_TTLF
BRFEFHLEHIERMITRER - SR
EMBERIENEE2EEELTARENER

=2 28
2

BoETANEUR FENRETERRTE
LEST  RPBERFEREBEEENINA
MEAEHNRE  JBMENHEEER
MERFREMNE - £E RBMEMAMER
MHNBEERTE  MPRNEEZK &
ZRE RIIARB - RZTERFLAMMLE
FMENBENASBEZMMERTFNERITHRE
B+ _TTLFREER - EmBRER

BRAEERIRR - HEMOMR - £E R
BMERNERMETEEESLS  EEMEE

A ER EE 7,900 ¢ RESH - B E R E X
5%~ BE A BSME A5 1,604 : U (B R GMPRE
£157%K  ER370F REMMEBERMMN £E
TEEEREE RHEEQNBERMEERLSE
R A E27R - Z2 T F 2 F HH#t)E1,000%
EEMEFE  HEHENAZEERITN T
Z— BHAMBATZEMEBFRERFL -

13



14

BERBEERARAS — T LFFH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEE & &SN

The extensive rectification activities brought about huge
impact on the industry. 2006 was the hardest time for all
drug manufacturing enterprises, and 2007 was the most
difficult year for the Company with principal operations in
R&D and provision of services. The reasons were that: 1.
The difficulties faced by drug manufacturing enterprises in
2006 would have a deferred impact on an enterprise engaged
in R&D; 2. The volume of new clinical services declined due
to the general suspension of new drug examination and
approval procedures in 2007, meanwhile, the approving
authority at various levels focused on special rectification
actions and postponed the assessment of new drugs, as
such the Group had difficulty in the transfer of technology for
new drugs; 3. The new Drug Registration Regulation became
effective in October 2007 for which a period of wait-and-see
and adaption would be needed for the industry. Under such
circumstances, our operations were also considerably affected
with the overall results lower than those expected at the
beginning of the year. However, in the long run, the special
rectification measures would help wipe off the unregulated
competition in the industry, such that a regulated market
would be favourable to the Group with its leading position
and economies of scale. With the policies becoming more
stable and the pending registration applications being
collectively treated, the Group has full confidence that, after
a short-term pain, the Group will embrace golden

opportunities for growth in 2008 and the many years to come.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007, consolidated turnover
amounted to RMB38,728,862, representing a decrease of
32% compared to RMB57,051,677 of last year, of which,
approximately RMB17,962,000 was derived from technology
transfer and contracted pharmaceutical development services,
and approximately RMB18,616,000 from clinical research
services. Profits attributable to shareholders amounted to

£
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approximately RMB1,596,693, representing a decrease of L BRBNRZZEZENFRAENETERER
89.7% compared to approximately RMB15,562,692 for the TEER R - AR S BB 5 5T B2 F AL I T A 2R
same period last year. The decrease in turnover and profits EENEZFHNISERREM

was a result of the rectification and inspection measures taken
by the government against the whole pharmaceutical industry
starting from 2006, which brought about material setback in
the development progress of the industry chain resulting from
the postponement of new drug approvals for drug

manufacturing enterprises.

The Group's overall gross profit margin was 59.2% for the REBFEERN  AEEREBEFNEAE59.2% '

ZEARF

year under review compared to 56.6% for the previous year, FEH A56.6%° EFMEFR
up 2.6% from that of 2006. 2.6% °
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General and administrative expenses amounted to
RMB18,165,017, representing an increase of 3.6% compared
to RMB17,542,086 in 2006. Finance costs amounted to
RMB5,338,548, representing a substantial increase compared
to RMB1,548,978 in 2006. The major reasons were: the
accrued interests of RMB1,040,381 attributable to convertible
bonds; and exchange loss of RMB3,376,000 arising from the
appreciation of CHF and depreciation of US dollars. For this
reason, the Company has taken corresponding hedging
measures to minimize its exchange loss, which include but
not limited to the conversion into RMB assets. As at the end
of the period, the Company obtained an increased interest
income of RMB1,526,000.

Issue of convertible notes

On 10 September 2007, the Company successfully issued
the convertible notes in the principal amount of CHF15 million
(approximately HK$97,200,000) due 2012 to Banque Heritage,
a Swiss investment bank (being the subscriber). The net
proceeds of approximately CHF15,000,000 (RMB95,936,000)
from the issue of convertible notes will be used for general
corporate and working capital purposes and funding possible
strategic acquisitions which can create synergies with the
Company's existing businesses. In order to pursue its global
vision and expand its size and scale of operations, the
Company is seeking opportunities for merger and acquisition
of pharmaceutical assets which, in addition to building size
and scale of operations and strengthening research and
development services in existing therapeutic areas, can
expand the Company's therapeutic capacity by entering into
new segments of the industry and complement the Company's
geographical expansion strategy to strengthen delivery
capabilities..
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

During the year, the Group maintained a sound financial
position and prudent liquidity risk management, and had
sufficient cash to meet the requirements of its business
development. As at 31 December 2007, the Group had current
assets of approximately RMB235,906,000, among which
RMB30,803,000 was cash. The Group had no short-term
bank liabilities and maintained sufficient cash and a strong
and sound financial position.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period under review, the Group's transactions were
substantially denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). In view of
the RMB appreciation trend, the Group engaged in risk-free
value-added banking activities in due course and transferred
its USD-denominated businesses to RMB-denominated
businesses according to the relevant business scale. The
Group closely monitors its foreign currency risk from time to
time and will use appropriate hedgings where necessary.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development and based on its business
transformation strategy of transforming from a leading
technology transfer supplier to an enterprise integrating
pharmaceutical development and products commercialisation,
the Group continued to expand its product lines and
accelerate the establishment of the marketing network so as
to rapidly capture its market share. The Group has managed
to establish a comprehensive value-added business mode
for value chains such as pharmaceutical research and
production, clinical trial, development of product lines,
franchise commercialisation, thereby enhancing the profitability
and risk resistance capability of the Company, and enabling
the Company to secure long-term stable profitability in future.
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Sales and Marketing

As at 31 December 2007, the Group signed 28 PDS contracts
with contract value of RMB51.33 million and 36 VPS contracts
with contract value of approximately RMB27,190,615,
aggregating to RMB78,520,615 in total. Despite a decrease
of 25.5% in the number of contracts compared to that of the
corresponding period last year, the total contract value
recorded an increase of 20%. Such an increase reflected the
improvement in the depth and value of the R&D and clinical
research services of the Group. Meanwhile, two contracts in
value of more than one million RMB each were entered into
with overseas customers.

The Group continued its investments in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network,
and introcued new drugs in the domestic market under the
brand of Venturepharm while striving to establish and expand
overseas markets. During the period, the Group not only
focused on business expansion, but also paid more attention
to the enhancement of brand value and the improvement of
quality management, aiming at becoming a comprehensive
and reliable technology and service provider with the most
prestigious brand and leading technologies.

Clinical Research Service (CRS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has
established the most integrated service in the country, which
provides a series of services ranging from preclinical
pharmacology, phase | clinical and bioequivalence studies,
phase II-1ll clinical studies, and phase IV post-marketing
clinical study, to data management and medical statistics,
and medical administration related service. The Group has
built a nation-wide network with bases in Beijing, Shanghai
and Guangzhou and offices in over 20 provincial capital cities.
As regards project handling ability, just to mention phases Il
and Il clinical studies alone, the Group operated 50 projects
at the same time. With its clinical research services covering
various therapeutic areas such as anti-tumor, cardiovascular
disease, CNS, endocrine, anti-infection, respiratory system,
digestive system, dermatosis, anti-allergy and gynecology,
the Group has become the most professional clinical research
service provider in respect of traditional Chinese medicine
and biotech products.
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Pharmaceutical Development Service (PDS)

The Group's portfolio for technology R&D and transfer covers
13 major and high growth therapeutic areas such as
endocrine, CNS, cardiovascular disease, dermatosis, cancer,
AIDS, allergy and antibiotics. Several of its products are
introduced to the domestic market for the first time and are
exclusive products. Furthermore, several advanced technology
platforms have been established for drug synthesis,

pharmaceutical analysis and drug delivery systems.

The Group's R&D strength is able to maintain a leading
position in the industry. The Group initiated 55 new projects
in 2007 and currently has 228 products under development.
During the year, the State Food and Drug Administration
("SFDA") granted 25 new Clinical Study Permits ("CSP") to
the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the total
number of CSPs obtained by the Group accumulated to 295
and the total number of MPs accumulated to 108.

Total number of CSPs for the year
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Patents

The Group has always placed great emphasis on the
protection of intellectual property rights. Since its incorporation
and up to 31 December 2007, the Group had submitted 108
patent applications.

PROSPECTS

To capitalize on the opportunity of the increased demand of
global R&D outsourcing market, the company has made best
efforts to improve its service capacities and performance in
R&D outsourcing service by providing fully integrated
pharmaceutical services that include PDS (Pharmaceutical
Development Service), API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient),
CRS (Contract Research Service), RAS (Regulatory Affairs
Service), CMS (Contract Manufacturing Service) and CSS
(Contract Sales Service). In the meantime, the Group believes
that as the government completes its rectification of the
industry and further standardizes its supervision and
accelerates its remedial actions, the market environment will
become more favorable to the Group given its competitive
edge. The upcoming new booming age of the pharmaceutical
industry will not only present the Group with rare and precious
business opportunities, but also considerable return for the
shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has not been any change to the capital structure of

the Company since that date.
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Company invested its surplus fund through its principal
bank in investment market funds, which was RMB72,409,000.

=H

ARE—RTERENZERE o AR FHMKL
ETRALE+ A=t RALEARRIBHE
M R EE o

RE

RIERBBERENEMERTRER 2B - K
SETERNERESMBENREE - U
% 2= 22 ) 7 %% AR 75 (PDS) ~ B BBl K &
(API) « & 49 35 IR 7% (CRS) ~ Z£ K R 7% (RAS) & &
ANEERBCMS)RE X IEE RS CSS)Z2E2H
FERRT ARASENMEE - BEBRFA
REITHERE - E—PHREBEE - MRBE
MEBEREEREAEENHRFED - BETE
W EERABEARNEETRDA %50 #
B VB AERREEREENE R -

EXER

BZBNUK  NRRFZ2ERER L EAERE
) o

EXRE

ARREEBEFTBEREBTEEKESKRE
RiEEE ARKET72,409,0007T °



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2007

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEE & &SN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees in the Group was 281 as at
31 December 2007 (2006: 281). The Group’s remuneration
policy is basically determined by the performance of individual
employees. In addition to salaries and bonuses, employee
benefits included medical and pension contributions and share
options schemes.

APPROPRIATION

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and propose that the
profit for the year be retained.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements for the year, including the
accounting principles and accounting standards adopted by
the Company, and discussed matters relating to auditing,
internal controls an financial reporting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, is the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
Managing Director and Joint Chief Technology Officer of the
Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for strategic planning and
development, overall management and R&D activities of the
Group. Mr. Guo obtained with a Master degree in science
from University of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. Guo has also
completed various approved courses for the degree of Master
of Business Administration in the Heriot-Watt University.
Before establishing the Group in December 1998, Mr. Guo
had worked for two pharmaceutical companies in Canada,
namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm Limited, both are
pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research scientist
and process development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo
has approximately 10 years experience in research,
pharmaceutical development and management in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Guo is a member of the American
Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists and the National
Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr. Song
is responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also the head
of the Human Resources Management Department of the
Group. Dr. Song graduated from China Concord Medical
University with a Doctorate degree in clinical medicine in July
1995. She is also a Registered Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group in February 2000, Ms. Song had served
as general manager of Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co.
Ltd.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director by
C Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science
from the Department of Statistics and Applied Probability
from the University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has
been serving as the Vice President Officer of the The
Foundation of Science and Technology for Development of
the State Planning Committee, State Economic and Trade
Commission of the PRC and China Science Academy since
September 1999. He was appointed as non-executive Director
in August 2002.

Mr. WU Xin, is a non-executive Director nominated by C
Tech Fund. Mr. Wu is a vice-president of NewMargin. Mr.
Wu obtained his Master of Science degree from Stanford
University in Engineering-Economic Systems in 1994 and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of lllinois in May 1993. Prior to joining NewMargin,
Mr. Wu worked in Chase Capital Partners, an investment
firm, and at Robertson Stephens & Company, an investment
firm based in San Francisco. He was appointed as

non-executive Director in August 2002.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive Director. Dr. Zhang
is the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Biosciences
Ltd., a leading Chinese biotech company specialized in
innovated cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery.
Dr. Zhang had worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse
First Boston. Dr. Zhang holds an M. D from Tianjin Medical
University, Ph. D from University of Pennsylvania, and an
MBA from the University of Chicago, USA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Hong Bo, is an independent non-executive Director
and is the chairman of the audit committee. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wang graduated from Nan Kai University with a master
degree. Mr. Wang is presently a finance manager of TCL
Group Limited. Mr. Wang has over 10 years of experience in
auditing. He was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in September 2004.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQS, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was awarded an MBA from the Columbia
University in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for
Bristol-Myers Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was
to start up the consumer over-the-counter business of Bristol-
Myers Squibb in 1994. He became Chairman and President
of Bristol-Myers Squibb China from 1997 to 2000. Prior to
working in China, Mr. Contomichalos held various key
consumer marketing and business development positions with
Bristol-Myers Squibb in the USA and Canada and has about
18 years of experience in this field. He was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in August 2002.

Mr. WU Ming Yu, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wu is a member of the education committee of the China
(Hainan) Reform Development Research Institute, a member
of Standing Committee of China Association of Science and
Technology; President of Chinese Society of Technology
Economics; Honorary President of China Society of Science
and Science Technology Policy Research and Vice-President
of China Society of Land Economics Research. Mr. Wu has
held the post of Vice Minister of the Development Research
Center of the State Council, Vice Minister of the State Science
and Technology Commission; President of China Technology
Economic Research Institute; Vice President of China Society
of Science and Science Technology Policy; Economist of
Economy Research Institute of the State Council and
President of Asia-Pacific Research Institute. He was appointed

24 as independent non-executive Director in August 2002.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group's senior management comprises the following
employees:

Mr. George Fei PENG, is the Vice President of the Group.
Mr. Peng holds a Master of Finance and Investment degree
from Durham University (UK). He has over ten years of
experience in investment management in US, U.K and China.
Before joining the Group, he was a co-founding partner of Il
Global Consulting.

Dr. Tom Tuo JIN, is the Joint Chief Technology Officer. Dr.
Jin holds M. D from University of Toronto and Ph. D from
Hokkaido University. Dr. Jin engaged in education and
pharmaceutical R&D in Japan, USA Novartis and Canada for
years. Dr. Jin was a researcher with Aventis-Pasteur (USA),
Supervisor of Formulation Division with BioDelivery Science
(USA), as well as Associate Professor with Long Island
University. Dr. Jin is the dean of Sinican Institute. Dr. Jin
published 25 articles in periodical and applied for 10 patents.
Dr. Jin is a member of American Association of Pharmaceutical
Scientists.

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, is the co-head of the Group's Business
Development Department (International Division). He is also
the Chief Executive Officer of P.K. Pharmatech in India. Dr.
Gupta has obtained his degree of bachelor of medicine and
bachelor of surgery in December 1982. He worked with Lupin
Laboratories Limited of India before he joined the Group in
December 2000 and was seconded to the exclusive marketing
and distribution agent in Hong Kong in 1996. He was
responsible for marketing and distributing of product of Lupin
Group in the Asia region. He has over ten years of experience

in the field of pharmaceutical industry.

SREERE
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AEBzeRERERNATEREHEK

TREE  AEEREE cEhAAEFBREREM
MAREBLHMRIEEBE LB - FEXH - &
BERAPHGEEEEBRAE TFL5% - RIMAKR
EE R - %Al Global Consultingz 2L Al #t &
BA o

RELT  RBMERINAE SBIRFEZMR
ZREBEEBHITRAAILBERNSE LS -
SETZERN B R - EBINovartis X i1 £ K1
EHEREBAEIE - B TELEFT
Aventis-Pasteur (USA)&)#ff 3t & - BioDelivery
Science (USAEE F #MEE * UAEBEE KR
B2 #% - £ 181 ASinican InstitutefI it & ° &
BT E2RERFTREFEXEREF10IBEF B
o2 AXHEBRERGEKE -

Tarun GUPTAB L + AAREE X155 E I (B
) B FEEE o IR ENEP.K. Pharmatech 2 1T
H#EE - Guptaf tR—ANZF+ A ESE
BEBAL BN RIBBESENG  c RZTTT
F+ZAMAXREERF @ % % EE Lupin
Laboratories Limited TYE + A — LS FHAE
REBBRMBHEERD HRE - A ELupin
EERERETEIMNEZTEEERDE - BRE
BEEBEMIOFLR °
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group") for the year ended
31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 58 and 146, respectively, to
the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
business segments is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2007 are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 52 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and propose that the

profit for the year be retained.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements.

ARAREFEZEURERARAMMBRA ([4XE
BDAEEZE_TT+FT_A=T—HILFEZ
FRERERBERFREMERE -
EFRREK

ARBB—HREZERAF - ARBAZHMER

AN ERNR 2 EBEB D RIS B 7% & M
1585 146 °

AEBFRARRBREBELHN - HRUBR
I FE6 -

RERDE
AEERE-TTLFT_AZ+-ALFE

ZEBEHNAFRERAEFANER -

EETERRBE_FTTLF T _A=1T—H
HERERERABRE  YERBREANFE i
R o

ME - BERERHE

AEBEARBAYE  BERXBERAFEZ
BHFBHENMBHRRMEI2-

[N

RRABBEARZFIBEHN WK E27 ©



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2007

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRSE

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 122 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
147 to 148.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Managing Director:

William Xia GUO

Executive Directors:

Maria Xuemei SONG

Non-executive Directors:

FENG Tao

WU Xin

Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-executive Directors:
WANG Hong Bo

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WU Ming Yu

f#th

AEERARARFHEERFAZESHFIBHNY

AR ME122 -
EFEHMBEBE

e i
BEHMEFHNFE147E148H

FARBEARSBEHEARBAZEEES

Y=

EEAKE .

HE

FHTES

5=
R
5K ik

BYFHTES:
FAR

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
R AR

RBERBETBRFE 2 FER
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In accordance with Articles 95 and 121 of the Company's
Articles of Association, WU Xin, FENG Tao, Nathan Xin
ZHANG, WANG Hong Bo, Paul CONTOMICHALOS and WU
Ming Yu retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hongbo, who do
not have a service contract, each of the Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for three years
from 10 July 20083 (the "Listing Date"). Each of the Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors was appointed as
Director of the Company respectively subject to termination
in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service

contracts, if applicable.

On 11 July 2007, the service contract with each Director
other than Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, expired
and be renewed for one more year.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

BEARAA ZHEHBSERML FESR
1211 - Rk~ B&E » RIX ~ T4K - Paul
CONTOMICHALOS K R A &R (£ & & 1% fE &
EAT o

BRoR IR & EALR I AT LR & H40 » BT
EFEEARARYZE _TE=FtHA+H
(TEmRE) BFA/AB=F2REEH - &H
TESFRIPTESEZTR/ARAEFTHR
BRREEBRKEAMER)FTRZETER
TTIAELE -

R-ZZBZLFLAT B BRMEXAR
Sy RERZRBANER L EBHEH—
EO

BEXHEEN  BREERRBFASER
BEZES  BEEANRFHEEMANER A
RIMEMASER —FATMMELMAE CEEME
BRON M T BE TR EZIREEL -



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2007

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEFERSE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions
of the Company's Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), which are
required (a) to notify the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
taken under such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(1) The Company

EEREETBRAERRS - HEBERHD
REZZER

RZZTZLF+_A=+—H KXREZ2E=E
REBETBABERAARREEBREZE (EXR
BHRHAEEN ([FHRBAEEG]) BXVE) 2
Rin - RGO ESY  HEQEREES
MHE G EXNVIETRESD IBAEARRE K
EABMAERSITAER AR ([BRAT]) 2#ERER
e (BREESRESS KR GRAIZ S GRXHE
EFSIRAEB ZERIAR) | HO)BRIEFS
KA E & FIE 352K + BH AZiGFri & 2
Bm kAR  SOBRIERBIZEAIZER EmREIZE
5A46ZEL5.67TIRFATMLZ R KRB M T

REQTRORIEBRDZHFR
(1) &R &E]
Number of shares in

which interested
under physically

Number of shares in settled equity
which interested derivatives Approximate
(other than under BREENLEE percentage
equity derivatives) RAST4E  Total number of interest
Name Type of interest  Capacity BEREzRHEE IAEARER of shares BN
HE ERER L) (BRAFTET AR ZRHEE R 17 42 & BOW
(Note 3)
GES)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 7,884,000 16,994,377 4.72
HE 'A EGZEEA
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 _ 149,432,583 41.51
HE NG Corporation (Note 1)
REthEEER (W)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled
F$E NG Corporation (Note 2) 15,966,073 _ 15,966,073 4.44

REnEEER (ME2)

29



30

BERBEERARAR — T LFFH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

i

=

FERSE

Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Inc., is
47.63 % directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 44.94 %
held by Mr. William Xia GUO through Winsland Agents Limited,
his wholly and beneficially owned company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands.

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is

100 % beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Various interests of the Directors and chief executives pursuant
to physically settled equity derivatives are through share
options granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme.

feET © 2% H0E E Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B8 25
BhRAEEEFHA7.63%KE - LA RABEL
4 3% 3B Winsland Agents Limited (74 % & Bz 22
HEAMKY  BBEEL2EERER) T
G 44.94% R 4E -

ffeE2 © 2% A B Bright Excel Assets Limited % &)
fi% # 8 Venturepharm Holdings Inc.® = #
5

ME3: BEERIETBRAEREMEERAITET
BERTZZ2REEREBREERARER
A BB AT Bl b 2 R A o 15T

Details of which are set forth as follows: (I

Number of shares in which

interested under physically

settled equity derivatives as at

20 June 2003 and 31 December 2007

R-EBEE=FXA=+H

E=—FEEt+tE+=-H=+—H
Name REBYEERATETIR Date of grant Exercise price
% & BFEREazZRHOHE REHBH TEE
William Xia GUO 7,200,000 20 June 2003 HK$0.32
e —EE=FH=1+H 0.327 7T
William Xia GUO 360,000 2 March 2005 HK$0.52
e —ETRF=H=H 0.52% 7T
William Xia GUO 324,000 10 August 2006 HK$0.36
LE —EERENATH 0.3678 7T

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a vesting
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30 % of
the underlying shares after 31 December 2003, up to
another 30 % of the underlying shares after 31 December
2004 and the balance after 31 December 2005. The
relevant options will expire after ten years from the date
of grant. Mr. William Xia GUO has undertaken to the
Stock Exchange that he will not exercise their options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme within
the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

?BE?&E%FZ%H&%%M R BERE R

AR _EE=F+ A= —I— B&1T
ﬁ?y#ﬁfaﬁﬁxfﬁso%zﬁﬁﬂx% —FF
meE+ = H—Jr*ElféﬂﬁT\yﬁé\?fH%%Hﬂn
HER30% 2 Bl - RN _TTRF+ A
=t BERITESRT 2BRE - BRBERE
RHRFELBRRTFER - BELLETFER
B ATAGE  RMEMABESF12@A R -
BASITRRRIEERDFME S/ BARER
SERZEIRE -
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(2) A subsidiary of the Company - Beijing Dezhong-Venture
Pharmaceutical Technology Development Company
Limited

@) A=z

Al HTE
FI% B R A A

Capital
contribution on
a Sino-foreign
co-operative
joint venture

Al — LR

=)

ERE T EY M

Approximate
percentage of
interest of
shareholding in
joint venture

Name Type of interest Capacity R—BHIIEE REEbERE
" E ERER 514 EELECIHER ZEGBAB I
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled US$111,000 12.83
e UNE corporation (Note 1) 111,000% 7T

RPEHEE R (M eE1)
Note 1:  The interest is held by Beijing Venturepharm Biotech a1 : REBRILIRBEZ2EDEERNEBRAAE

Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC, for which 99% of its
shareholding is beneficially held by Mr. William Xia GUO and
1% held by Dr. Maria Xue-mei SONG.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of
the Directors and chief executive had any interests or short
positions in any securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provision
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to
the rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

B EXHTES I
—H EFEKEZE

B ZARBE—RRPEFMAZZERAD
Al HOO%MREHA B LEERIFTE 1%
AlRSHHELHES -

R-ZBTELF+ A=+
TRABBENRARARHE

ERAAEEE (& RE S L E GHIEXVER)
ZREH - HHAQRERESF MPEKRMIEXV
BETRFED A E AN F B R FT2 AE (]

@mAAXR (B

ERERBEESFEAEGRIZEGR
NREFRRSHER I ERIRR) -
&5 K B I 3521651 A
ZEMBEZIORE

5k (0) 1R 1%
% {6191 P 32t 3 RC 11

o (o) 4R 1 &I 2 17 75 32 A

FE546E5.67TIKZ T ZERIERI AR ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any Directors, chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2007, the interests and short
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed pursuant to
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered

FERR

in the register referred to therein were as follows:

BARRIEMEBERFETHAEMA K=
Z2LF+A=+—B UTALIHEERR
Az iy KA R D R e s AR M ARE
ErMHERIIEXVEBFE2RE35 B 1F H H
B RAREBEES RS GRDIEXVEE3361%A
FIAZ G & Mz s MR R -

Approximate
percentage of

interest

Name Capacity Number of shares BN

£ 5% i&vig @=| =Rl

Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Beneficial owner 149,432,583 41 .51
(Note 1) (FF5E1) EnEAA

Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Interest of controlled corporation 15,966,073 4.44

(Note 2) (Fff 5£2) PR A B

Bright Excel Assets Limited Beneficial owner 15,966,073 4.44
(Note 2) (Mt 5E£2) EnEAA

C Tech Fund Beneficial owner 80,736,558 22.43
Em#AA

William Xia GUO (Notes 1, 2 and 3) Beneficial owner and interest of 182,069,033 50.57

HE (MsE1 - 2K%3)

controlled corporations
BEnlEB ARIEHEEE R
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Note 1:  Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held by Mr. William
Xia GUO and 44.94% held by Mr. William Xia GUO through Winsland
Agent Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Note 2:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 %
beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings Inc., the
interest of 16,310,377 shares comprising of 7,200,000 and 360,000
shares underlying the options granted to him under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme respectively are
beneficially owned by Mr. William Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, there
was no other persons who was recorded in the register of
the Company as having interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to section 336
of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 28 and note 33 to the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.

REDARGREBRG 25 A

MfzE1 :  Venturepharm Holdings Inc.% Bl i3 38 2 5c 4 & #
FEHA47.63%R % + LA K B 3 E % 4 5 1B Winsland
Agent Limited (R & B R Z B S Mz - R %L
E2EERER) FHFHA44.94%RHE -

MizE2 : 5242 %% @ Bright Excel Assets LimitedZ & % #
e Venturepharm Holdings Inc. 25 A -

BtsE3 :  B& & B Venturepharm Holdings Inc.# 48 2 B3 5 -
DEREBEEEE16,310,377 B MK 1EZ - e
FERRAR B A A 576 AR AT A AR 5 81 R R AR ST B3R
T 1% 2 B8 IR ¥ P % K& 9 Rl 7,200,0008% A 3 &
360,000% Bz 17 °

BREXHBEEEN R-TTLF+_A=+
— B BARFAECMLE  SIEEAEMA
ITRARA ZRP KRB P HEAREE
7 MG IRBIEXVERFE 2R F 370 B A A 2 7]
BREIRE  REARBIFRHEHIE
XV D 55 3365 71) A 5% 16k Pt & 72 it 2 4 1 300K

A
B °

EEREXRGHZESR

B 1 7% MR MY 28 K P FEBBIRBE & S - NF 4
AFREARE SEFERNQRREER
MBRARAEPINIRARTAEERETE
BEXEMERBEEAEABAIEREGLN -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the
shareholder on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the "Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme") in order to recognise and reward the
contribution of certain Directors, senior management and
advisers, the details of which are set out in the paragraph
head "Share Option Scheme" in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus. As at 20 June 2003, options comprising a
total of 11,520,000 underlying shares were granted. As
at 31 December 2007, the options outstanding are
11,520,000 and no options granted pursuant to the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised, cancelled
or lapsed. Particulars of the outstanding options that had
been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Period during which the

options remain exercisable

after the date of grant

Exercise price

BRAMERABRESS

ARARBREBRENR-_ZTE=F=H=+—H
WA EEREREMERETE (BXA
FERATERETZ]) LEERERET
BT mATEERBEEZER  FEEA
EREEWMEMERETE] & - RZF
T=FXNA=-1+H ARAERESREH
11,520,000 fH AR 1 < BB fix#E - KT F
+tF+=A=+—H " 11,520,000 & f% #
MARITEE - BARIE B X ARSI AT IR g
BRI 2 BRI TT(E - SRS o
RZEBEEL+F+-_A=1+—8 BEHEIA
FERMEBRETZEREBRRITEZE
BREFBOT

Number of underlying shares

under the option as

at 20.6.2003 and 31.12.2007

R-ZZBZE=FXA=-1+HEK

Name of grantees B IR RE A 1R per share —EELtFE+ZA=+—H
ARAESR HEZATTHEEHR BRITEE BRETR ZEBERAEE
William Xia GUO (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 7,200,000
B (fzE1K%2) T 0.32/ 7T
2 other participants (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 2,520,000
M H A28 (i E1k2) TF 0.327% 7T
1 other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0.40 1,800,000
—ZHEM2EE (F:E3) TF 0.40% 7T

11,520,000
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As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of

4,042,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2007, the options outstanding are 1,892,000
and 2,150,000 options granted pursuant to this Share

Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars

of the outstanding options which have been granted under

this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2007 are

as follows:

Period during which the
options remain exercisable
after the date of grant

R-_ZEERE=A_H EBE EREH
4,042,000 BB RR D 2 B ixHE - RZZ2ZF
+tE&+=ZA=+—H " F1,892,00017 i i&
R AITE - & A2,150,00017 18 15 5% B i
AT IR L 2 BRI SR - R
TEHF+-A=1+—8  EEREERE
FFEIRE 2 MARTTEBEREFFOT

Exercise price

Number of underlying
shares under the option as
at 2.3.2005 and 31.12.2007
R-ZBZERF=A=-HK

Name of grantees BRERRH per share —EZEtLtHF+-HA=+—H
ABARR HHEIZ A F 1T EHIBR BRITHEE BRESR ZEBRAEAR
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.52 360,000
ME +&F 0.52%8 7T
Other Directors 10 years HK$0.52 720,000
HMESE T4 0.52% 7T
Other participant 10 years HK$0.52 812,000
Hih 2 8% +4F 0.52%8 7T

1,892,000
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3. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme.

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total of
1,098,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2007, the options outstanding are 288,000
and 810,000 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars
of the outstanding options which have been granted under

BB R R s &l
BEARABREN_ZEE=FRAA_+=H
ZEMERZER AR ARMN— BB
2l o

RZZEZRFT_A+HEAB - EXRETRE
1,098,000 HEA R 2 FEMRHE - RZ=F
Z+HF+ A =+—H ' 5288,00017 & &
HE M AR AT B 810,00017 1R 15 B8 A% 4 51
EIRE s ERECHEFHEIER - RZTF
+tF+—A=+—8 E@EREERESE

this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2007 are B ZERTEBREFBOT
as follows:
Number of underlying
Period during which the shares under the option as
options remain exercisable at 14.12.2005 and 31.12.2007
after the date of grant Exercise price R-ZEZEREF+=-A+MWMA
Name of grantees B RENR W pershare R-_ZZLtF+-A=+—H
AEBEAMER BEIRAFITEHR BRIEE BERESRZEBRAHE
4 participants 10 years HK$0.45 288,000
AR 2 HE +F 0.457% 7T
288,000
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4. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders

of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 10 August 2006, options comprising a total of

4,118,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2007, the options outstanding are 3,708,000
and 410,400 options granted pursuant to this Share

Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars

of the outstanding options which have been granted under

this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2007 are

as follows:

Period during which the
options remain exercisable
after the date of grant

Exercise price

BRETE

BEARARENR_-_ZZT=FAHA_+=H
ZEERBR W ARRRA BB RER

g o

RZZEZERENATH BEREIRE
4,118,000tk h 2 iEix#E - R=F
+t&+=ZA=+—H ' F3,708,00017 I§ i%
M ARITEE - & AF 410,400 18 15 B8 IR AE AT
EIRE EBRED KT HSEAR  c RZET
+t&+-ZA=+—8  E@EREEKETE
BREZHRTEEREFBAT

A O

Number of underlying
shares under the option as
at 10.8.2006 and 31.12.2007
R-ZZEZEAENAT+H

Name of grantees BRENR S pershare R-_ZZtF+-_A=+—H
ABEARR HEAZ A F1TEHR BRITHEE BRESR ZEBRAEAE
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.36 324,000
FE T4 0.367% 7T
Other directors 10 years HK$0.36 792,000
HtEE T+ 0.3678 7T
Other participant 10 years HK$0.36 2,592,000
Hih20EE T4 0.3678 7T

3,708,000
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5. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 10 May 2007, options comprising a total of
7,568,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2007, the options outstanding are 6,805,200
and 762,800 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars
of the outstanding options which have been granted under

5. BREE

BERARARER-_ZZT=FAA_+=H
ZEERBR  ARBERA—IBNBRE

g o

RZZEZE+LFRATH EEESIRAH
7,568, OOOJMH Mkt 2 ERiE R _ZF
+t&+=ZA=+—H ' 56,805,20017 i I&
M ARITEE - XA 762,800 1R 15 88 IR AT
SR E 2 EBRED R EHSKRR - RZEE
tF+=-ZA=+—8  BHEREERETE

this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2007 are Bz ERTEBREFBOT
as follows:
Number of underlying
Period during which the shares under the option as
options remain exercisable at 10.5.2007 and 31.12.2007
after the date of grant Exercise price R-EBZEtLtFHAT+H
Name of grantees BRENR S pershare R-_ZEZtHF+=-HA=+—H
ABEAER HEAZ W FITEHR BRITHEE EBRESRZEBRAHE
William Xia Guo 10 years HK$0.625 966,000
HBE T4 0.625/%8 7T
Other directors 10 years HK$0.625 956,000
HihZEE T4 0.625/% 7T
Other participant 10 years HK$0.625 4,883,200
Hih2mE T+ 0.625/%8 7T
COMPETING INTERESTS R R

As at 31 December 2007, none of the Directors or the
management shareholders of the Company and their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

R-FBFLF+_A=1+—B XRBZE=E
HEEERRERESAZBHEAL(EERE
FRETARAD BB EFERAEEEBB K
AREBRGFNEBT AR -
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BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied
with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules
5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation for independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that they
are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares during
the year ended 31 December 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 22% of the Group's sales. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 6% of the sales
of the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest

suppliers were less than 10% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital had any interest in the

five largest customers of the Group.

EEgERARER
AARB LMK —HEBSTAIZER ETEL
F5.46E5.68KH I 2 EESERRER °

BYUFHTES2BLMY

ARRRERFRIFER LR RIE5.00F K2 =5
MIEMTESEBE LM 2 FERR - SBILIFH
TEZCHABBILAL -

BE -HEFELEARAQAREG

BE_ZTTHF+_A=+—HIEFR  £R
AHEERAMNBARMERE  HEXBOE
(G NN B o 7

FTEHREBREF

TR AKEELREFHEASEEERY
22% - RABFPIHAKREHERNO% °

AEBLAHERRLEABERINASEEL
BEE10% -

WESAA  BEARREHTRABREGNZE
EOHEBMBATHEARIABERAKERL K
BT HAETMER -






42

BERBEEARASE — ST LFFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XE B ®WE

(1) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company applied the principles and fully complied
with the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules ("CG Code") save with certain
deviations in respect of the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer.

(2) DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Company Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in
compliance with the provisions that are set out in the
GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
Directors' dealings of securities since 29 June 2005.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors and
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Company Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2007.

(N EEERER

AR AMK BRI FE AR T AR B B 6% 1 5 A7 £ R Bl
REmEBTFTEFRHTFABRX([EEERE
BRI 2R REEIERRE  REBEER
HITHBRHEH AR -

QEEZBERS

ARBIEERAIZER EHARRBIFAEMRI - ]
MEMBTAESFETESFR SN RAST
A - ERARRR —_FEZTAFNA-TNAE
HESEERSFBRTER - ERAE2EES
ELAREHRR  EFHER  REREBEE=
ZELHE+_A=+—BLFEER2F  —H
B RESTRIFAEREER



The Board
BEg

Chairman appointed by the board
HEEFSEEERE
2 Executive Directors
IFMITES
3 Non-Executive Directors
IIFMITES
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
B IFNITESR

Executive Directors Audit Committee
HITES EREES
William Xia GUO 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
8 MBI TES
Maria Xuemei SONG Wang Hong Bo (Chairman)
REWE FAE (EFF)
Paul CONTOMICHALOS

Wu Ming Yu
R

Senior Management

EREEE

Mr. George Fei Peng, Vice President

TRELE - BlEH

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, Co-head of the Group
Business Development

Tarun GUPTATE &+ REMEBERITBFEEE

Dr. Tom Tuo JIN, Joint Chief Technology Officer

SIEEL - BUERITRE
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(c) Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

The Board of Directors ("“Board") of the Company is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of
enhancing shareholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight
Directors, with two Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
One-third of the Board is Independent Non-executive Directors
and one of them has appropriate professional qualifications.
Reviews are made regularly of the Board composition to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. All Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the
approval and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and
policies; approval of annual budgets and business plans;
evaluating the performance of the Group; and oversight of
management. One of the important roles of the Chairman is
to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Group. All Directors have
been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in
the agenda. With the support of Executive Directors and the
Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receives adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular
Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals have been
scheduled for 2007. The Directors can attend meetings in
persons or through other means of electronic communication
in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.

© BEXAEEREIN  BERREENEEMZER
BFEAE EERZEFEARNRREEMNE AR
AV ERAEER - FATEHHECEERER
SN MABE T AR IEZRIBAH -

ApmEEg (B2 AABEEEAR
BEBREHKZERE  LIEAKRREERHE
E}\j o]

ARBEFEHEHENBEFTEX  HTMW
ARRTES AR/ HUTEETR=2R
BUFATEST - =N ZEZTEXERE
VHFRTEF ET - RBEASEEEER -
EXg T Hma HER  MBERREEZE
EHE - BREEMERPISTE - MEEAN
RAEBRE - 2RBUIFNTEFHTA
EHRBIEIABMGHAE B LES - BERE
S EX BB L S0 -

EZeHEFERE  AEEMNEELARE
ERERBMBER  HHEFEREEEXB
2 HEAKRERR  REEEEE - XF
Hp—RERRY - SELEFE - UER
ESeUAKERENRTE - EREEH
ABEZEROGHHALBESTER - B
WITESRRARMEZXS - TFEENER
ERESLHEZA/NENEFTEERIEDL
ZEE VWERBHEAISEEF -

ARB @R EBFENEZTCEREARIE
MX UEEBEEARELFE - N-FF
tF EREFTERALHBRTORAERNES
2EH BREARRZAREZERAMA
EXNHIREBEFBATALFEH -
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Board papers are circulated not less than seven days before
the Board meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings.
The Company Secretary and the Qualified Accountant shall
attend all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
governance, statutory compliance, accounting and financial
matters when necessary. Directors shall have full access to
information on the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director may
request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of the board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open

for inspection by Directors.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007, the
Board met and held four meetings in March, May, August
and November 2007. The attendance records of the

aforementioned four Board meetings are set out below:

ExZexXtenESseeRB8TRIERA
B URREFEASREZTESHRH
ZERELABRE - RAINERAERSE
FEVALERAEHEEERE  UNFE
Bl bRER EERD - Bt RPEER
RESR EFEANEDNAKEMRBEEHR -
VHREERRFTERNBHUEXER -
REMEMBDTERUGEZIE MSES
AERNBEHAIRE - EFSSHLHA
NAMEGFE  YAIHEESER -

HE_ZTZ+F+_A=+— EIJJ:‘T'_TI
A Z5g8R_ZTTtF=H A1 A"
AR+—ARTOAEE - J:E&lﬂ//xﬁ%@
G HREREHINOT

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year

FRAENES-ESggsaHER
Attendance no. Attendance rate
o R # R x

Executive Director HITES
William Xia GUO EI19 =] 4/4 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG R E I 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FHITES
FENG Tao 5 & 4/4 100%
WU Xin R R 4/4 100%
Nathan Xin ZHANG ok ik 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors & IEHTES
WANG Hong Bo F 4R 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu R EF ) 4/4 100%
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(4) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 4) ERFRITHAR

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, and ensures that all
keys and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to day
management of the Company's business is handled by
the executive directors and senior management, who take
the responsibility to run the Group's business and to
implement the Group's strategy so as to achieve the
overall commercial objectives of the Company.

(5) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises the
Chairman of the Board Mr. William Xia GUO, a Non-
executive Director Mr. FENG Tao and an Independent
Non-executive Director Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQOS. Mr.
William Xia GUO is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company's policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

(6) NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association,
nomination of Directors is determined by the Board with
approvals by the shareholders in the general meeting.

EXEeT R FEES O REHANE
15 NEREFGNEEARZREMAWAT
BEZREESEHE-

AWM > RRBHAZEEMITRAR - R
B ARREHRZBEEEERATEERS
REBAEBRT  REBALEAEEER
RETASERE  UWERAARBERER
SR

B)EBME

R FWNEEShESTSXIRBELLE -
FEMITERIHBF LA KB IEHITE EPaul
CONTOMICHALOS £ 485k - SFE L £ A
FMEBEEEE -

FHZES T ERAERNEAREZTRER
EEABERHME 2 ARBBREEE - [
EXgRHEEBRER  Y2ZEFSTHA
RZAFBBRRE  BRIZBATESRR
BEREEABZEEMEES -

B)REBES

REBARB 2 ARABERMAR  EXREHR
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(7) AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve the
appointment of UHY ZTHZ HK CPA Limited as the new
auditors of the Group and that the Board is and be hereby
authorized to fix auditors' remuneration. Non-audit
services were not provided by previous auditors to the
Company during the twelve months ended 31 December
2007.

(8) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
the Company's annual reports and accounts, half-yearly
reports and quarterly reports and internal control system
of the Group and provide advice and comments to the
Board. The audit committee has three members
comprising the three Independent Non-executive
WANG Hong Bo, Mr. Paul
CONTOMICHALOS and Mr. WU Ming Yu. Mr. WANG

Hong Bo is the chairman of the audit committee.

Directors, Mr.

(7) R ET B &

REIERITZRRBFARG LHAEZTER
BEABSIMEBMERRA/AEENE
B AN - B R AR UL IR R T A BAT B
& BE_TTLFFT_A=+—HLT=
18 A IR - AT EARBED L B A AN 2 AR IF
Bz R -

B)EBERZEE

EZEZE SO K - WERAIER ETRA
EEPAEBESE  -BREES2ETER
ERBEARAZEEREREKE « ¥F#RK
ERFEREURAEE 2 RIPEIEHIE -
WHEESRHEIRESR BEZZES
“EBUFRITESILARKRELE - Paul
CONTOMICHALOSZE 4 & = 87 %) 5t £ 4
K FARCEREZEZBEGZER -
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The audit committee holds meetings on quarterly basis. EREZESEFTRISEZ R HE_ZTT
During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007, the +t&F+-A=+—HIE+=fEA ' B%ZEE8
audit committee held four meetings and reviewed the SERITUIEE  TEBMHNASEZFE
Group's annual report, quarterly and interim financial WE - FERTPHTBEE - LR ERZ
results. The attendance records of the aforementioned ZEECR L HEDHEINAT
four audit committee meetings are set out below:
Attendance of member at audit
committee meetings during the year
FRAERZEEHEZHER
Attendance no. Attendance rate
o R # R x
Members RE
WANG Hong Bo F AR 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu = BA B 4/4 100%

(9) DIRECTORS' ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

O EEERRETBUBERR2ELE

The Directors acknowledge that they take full EERE FE2EAEREUBEME -
responsibility in the preparation of the financial

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) set out
on pages 49 to 148, which comprise the consolidated and
the Company’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

HEEMEREZXZFRLA
(RESHBEMATZHRAA)
ERBRRZBLARBENRE

AZHBME TKERZEI9ZFE148EHELT
REZARQA ([ARAFEMBERER &
ER-_ZTLF T _A=1t—HZK/EESR
Fi'%&%ziﬁiﬁtifgzi*‘\l& Sk A
BEPRLIEAEACRER  RTBESFHER
BE R E MR -

EEmRVBBRR2Z2EME

EXZAURELBGHAMASERMIBEY KR
SERRBFBRATGIZHERE  AERH
VTEEFRAFHEINHEMHRR - LEETE
BRET BTRMBERAEYTEERA T2
JIM B HMAREMZARMERE - UERATES
REREE (T w2 h LA RFFRERIE)
EEYEAEESFEE  RETRBRTE
HeEBZaFHmE -
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

BB 2 B
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

r 8 I m R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TZELtF+-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR T ARET T
Turnover = 6 38,729 57,052
Cost of sales H & B AR (15,771) (24,766)
Gross profit E! 22,958 32,286
Other revenue Hfth Yy &5 7 2,433 5,631
Administrative expenses THRAX (18,165) (17,542)
Profit from operations & E A 7,226 20,375
Finance costs B ER 8 (5,338) (1,549)
Share of loss of associates FE (LB R Al B 18 - (53)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION B B A0 % 9 1,888 18,773
Income tax FriE %t 11 (788) (3,175)
Profit for the year Nl 1,100 15,598
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 1L :
Equity holders of the Company RAFRIERFEEA 1,597 15,563
Minority interest LY REER 28 (497) 35
1,100 15,598
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER 29
Basic BN 0.44 cents 4.32 cents
0.4441 4.321ll
Diluted e 0.42 cents 4.14 cents
0.424L 4.144L

All of the Group’s activities are classified as continuing.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these financial statements.

AEEMEXRBHARTERLE -

BEMIM E A% EM B mER AR D -
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HFEHAEBRRBER

As at 31 December 2007 R=-ZZT+HF+-_A=+—H

2007 2006
—EELF —EETRF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo 5E AR T AR T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BERE&E 12 11,267 6,762
New drugs technology ¥ BE g 13 6,958 8,107
Interest in associates REEERA 2 = 15 833 3,235
Available-for-sales financial assets AHEESREE 16 - 19,248
Unlisted investment ELEMEE 17 - 9,396
19,058 46,748
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Work-in-progress £ 24 iy 18 66,503 46,934
Trade receivables FEWE 5 AR 3K 19 30,721 18,023
Prepayments, deposits and FERRE - ek
other receivables H B YL 3R IE 20 34,841 17,823
Amounts due from related companies JfE Ui BE 38 A |) 5 21 629 1,296
Financial assets at fair value BEAVEEBER 22
through profit or loss AR CZERMEE 72,409 -
Cash and cash equivalents HekIREeFEEY 23 30,803 10,221
235,906 94,297
CURRENT LIABILITIES B A
Trade payables eS8 5 3kIE 24 285 463
Accruals and other payables FEGTRIE R H A ERT IR 25 5,237 1,085
Receipt in advance 78 Y FIE 24,207 5,507
Dividend payable JE - AR B - 54
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 26 - 6,451
Tax payable FEAS i IB 6,060 5,349
Bank overdraft IRITEX 3 =
35,792 18,909
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 200,114 75,388
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #REERBABER 219,172 122,136
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Corporate bonds payable A FES 31 95,936 =
NET ASSETS EEFE 123,236 122,136
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R B
Share capital fi% < 27 38,160 38,160
Reserves ER 28 82,484 80,887
Total equity attributable to equity NN
shareholders of the Company BFEARGEZAR 120,644 119,047
MINORITY INTERESTS LR RER 2,592 3,089
TOTAL EQUITY R 123,236 122,136
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors BN ST N\FZA -+t LtHRERRK
on 27 March 2008: T H 2

Mr. William Xia GUO
Director

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

EF

REWEL

BEMIPE R EMBHR 2AREBD -
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As at 31 December 2007

R-_ZEEt+E+-F=+—8

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 2 ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BERE&E 12 6 21
Interest in subsidiaries A S ENGIPA 14 67,417 52,120
Available-for-sales financial assets AEHEESREE 16 - 19,248
67,423 71,389
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H i & Uk 3k 18 1,476 3,388
Amount due from a related company JFE Ui BE 38 R |) FIE 21 6 25
Financial assets at fair value EANFEEBES
through profit or loss R ERMEE 22 72,409 =
Cash and cash equivalents HekIREeFEEY 23 17,193 298
91,084 3,711
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables H  fE 1 3R IE 25 - 440
Accrued expenses FEEH & A 25 114 =
Receipts in advance T8 W 318 - 20
Interest-bearing borrowings AFEEE 26 - 6,451
Dividend payable JE - AR B - 54
Bank overdraft RITEZ 3 =
117 6,965
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE(BE) FHE 90,967 (3,254)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #REERABERS 158,390 68,135
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Amount due to subsidiary AN NGIE ] 14 2,674 2 674
Convertible bonds AR E % 31 95,936 =
NET ASSETS EERH 59,780 65,461
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#FE
Share capital [N 27 38,160 38,160
Reserves ER 28 21,620 27,301
TOTAL EQUITY ESAE 59,780 65,461

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 27 March 2008:

Mr. William Xia GUO
Director

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.

EXZecX T N\F=A-_t+tHHELER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TZELtF+-_A=+—HIFE

Available-
for-sales
financial Statutory
Share-based assets enterprise
payment reserve expansion Minority
Share  reseve  TESE  Special Capital ~ Statutory fund  Refained interests
capital ~ RAAK  SHMEE  resenve  reseve  reseve AESRE  eamings HE Total
& 1 BE RHEE Z4RE iERE ¥REE RERY RREER &t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2006 RZEE E-A-H 38,160 258 (1,377) 6,039 894 3,612 6,795 48,963 3,054 106,398
Transfer to reserves ERZEE - - - - 191 191 (382) - -
Profit for the year REFE - - - - - - - 15563 3% 15598
Change in fair value for e
avallable-for-sales SHEEL
financial assets ATEED - - 345 - - - - - - 345
Reversal of share based BERAFHR
payment reserve [ S (205) = = = = = = S (205)
At 1 January 2007 R=EZ+5-f-H 38,160 53 (1,032) 6,039 894 3,803 6,986 64,144 3,089 122,136
Transfer to reserves ERZEE S 2,800 1,082 = 6 = = (3,838) S S
Profit for the year REFEH - - - - - - - 1,507 (497) 1,100
At 31 December 2007 RZBStE+-f=1-H 38,160 2,853 - 6,039 900 3,808 6,986 61,908 2,692 123,236
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIMI s Rz S BME 2HKLD ©

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TZELtF+-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBCHERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation B 56 B s A 1,888 18,773
Adjustments for: AT HRIBBZ FHE -
Recovery of bad debts g [B] £ BR - (929)
Allowance for trade receivables FEURE 5) BR sk 5 - 4,798
Allowance for work-in-progress 1 84 o B (714) 1,163
Amortisation and impairment EREEZ
of intangible assets i RORE 1,149 795
Depreciation and amortisation of WME BELRSREZ
property, plant and equipment I & I 5 1,769 529
Exchange gain M 5, Y o 23 795
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of associate HEBEAFEER, (WR) 935 (241)
Impairment of investment ®ERE 167 -
Interest income B WA (1,526) (2,057)
Investment gain "ERA (163) —
Share-based payment expenses B A9 < 5k B 2 (76) (205)
Share of loss of associate FEAGEE = A R B 1A - 53
Operating cash flows before LBESEHA
movements in working capital ZREEEME 3,452 23,474
Increase in work-in-progress £ 84 fB 38 N (19,569) (14,128)
Increase in trade receivables & U 2 5 BR 3R 38 0 (12,698) (12,409)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR FRIE - e kEAm
deposits and other receivables JE U BR ZX (385 00) Rk (17,018) 1,971
Decrease in amounts due from JE Wt B8 3 A Bl 3R IR
related companies W 667 463
Decrease in trade payables FE B 5 BR 50 (178) (131)
Increase/(Decrease) in accruals and & 5T 38 & B A FE 5 3kIE
other payables #n CRd) 4,152 (3,793)
Increase in receipt in advance T8 U FRIE 12 N 18,700 1,245
Decrease in dividend payable JE 15 B 2R (54) =
Cash used in operations REXEEMARS (22,546) (3,308)
PRC enterprise income tax BE(E&) Ko
(paid)/recovered FEEER (77) 1,472
Net cash used in operating activities RETFEHFAARSFR (22,623) (1,836)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TZELtF+-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EELHF e AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM RETFHZ2HERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in unlisted investment WA IELETRE 9,396 =
Purchase of property, plant BEWME  WELEZHE
and equipment (6,279) (2,268)
Purchase of new drugs technology BE B 3 s R i - (40)
Decrease in investment in associate Rt E R A 2w E R D 2,235 =
Decrease in available for sales investment 7] £ §8 & 3% & )5 > 19,248 =
Increase in financial assets at fair BRATEBEBERLERZ
value through profit or loss & BB B N (72,409) -
Bank interest received B U ERITH B 574 66
Interest received on available-for-sales A E S E E 2 FTIF &
financial assets 952 1,687
(Decrease)/Increase in interest-bearing SFEBE CRd) /1#m
borrowings (6,451) 3,451
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA) R & T8
investing activities (52,734) 2,896
CASH FLOWS FROM g T E
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZHRERE
Increase in corporate bonds payable B A A EHE N 95,936 -
Net cash generated from financing activities BEFZBFMEREFE 95,936 -
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BHeRES
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEYIZNFEHE 20,579 1,060
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOzEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR LBEESEEY 10,221 9,161
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRZES
AT END OF THE YEAR FHREEEY 30,800 10,221

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

BEMTE E A% S B MR 2 AR D
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre, 4th
Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman lIslands, and its principal place of business is
disclosed in “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 14 and 15 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group on
pages 52 to 57 have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements also
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (“RMB’000") which is the
functional currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 27 March 2008.

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE
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—HERAZ T+ BARBRASEEARE(Z
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HEBEREMEAA - HafMt=Emit s
Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, PO Box 2804,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands - T E & 2 & 5 3 B #F B R AN 6 3
[ARIBERA -

ARBZEBEBREBEER - EWBRA
REERRZEBEBDRENK E14R
5 e

FE2ESTEZ ARBHEAMBEHRRIIIRE
BEHHREER ([FAMBRSEL]
HEMAREEEAEMA® ([BEEs
BhAg ) Bz A ERENEEMEHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRAs 2. B HARBITZ2ERUB RS

% Al

(a) Standards, amendment and interpretations effective in (a) A-ZZLFERZER - BT RRE

2007

IFRS/HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”
and the complementary amendment to IAS/HKAS 1,
“Presentation of financial statements - Capital
disclosures”, introduces new disclosures relating to
financial instruments and does not have any impact
on the classification and valuation of the Group’s
financial instruments, or the disclosures relating to
taxation and trade and other payables.

IFRIC/HK(IFRIC) — Int 10, “Interim financial reporting
and impairment”, prohibits the impairment losses
recognised in an interim period on goodwill and
investments in equity instruments and in financial
assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent
balance sheet date. This standard does not have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

BIBR B B s R BB R R RS A
E7 IMBITHE: REIRERSZ
R/ EEEHEUNFEIRZBRE
Al M BmR 225 —BARKE]ISIA
BRMBBRROMBEER AL FEA
SEMBRRZ DB RMEEHBAHRE
KB G REMENRFEREMTZE -

BEREBRERBEEE S BF (BE
MHEHRERELZES) —RBF10%R [+
MM BRERREIRERTHERZ
BE BRATARERERAFTEZSE
MEERBEZREBRAIESRT —EH
BETUHER - HFETEHAKE 2
MBRREKNERNZE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRAs
(Continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in
2007 but not relevant

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to published standards are mandatory
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007 but they are not relevant to the Group’s
operations:

HKFRS 4, “Insurance contracts”;

HK(IFRIC) — Int 7, “Applying the restatement approach
under HKAS 29, Financial reporting
in hyper-inflationary economies”;

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8, “Scope of HKRS 27;

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9, “Re-assessment of embedded
derivatives”; and

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11, “HKFRS 2 - Group and treasury
share transactions”.

RAEHAEBIT 2ERBYBRSE
R ()

(b) RZZZLFLEREBEBZER - B7]
&

IO T A2 LR - EF] R BB R
HUERE  BER_ZTLF—A—B%
NgMB s FEREER  BERAEE
BIEER

ERUBRELNEM  [RBAN)
w5 (ARIHES - REETRIRATEH

2EZE®) ERIF20H 2 EFITA -
SHAREET U
kY
Bk (ERYBERSE - ZBBSK[BEMBRS
2EZ88) ERF25 8B E
Bk (ERYBERSE - SBRFIMIEFRAR
2EZ88) TETIAl R
Bk (ERYBERSE - ZBE1RIBEMBRS
2EZ88) ERFREE L ERR R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRAs
(Continued)

2. RAEHRNEBT 2EBMBRE
R ()

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

(c) MAREMRAKEIHIEA KMz &
B~ AT R2E

AT REAMZER BT REBEBE
Bzl mMASREERZZTZTNFE—
published and are mandatory for the Group’s B— R z%mAtsz e AR E
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 MR - BEREENEREZRP -
January 2008 or later periods, but the Group has not

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been

early adopted them:

HKAS 23 (Amendment), “Borrowing costs” (effective EBSTERF 235k (KEET) @ [ER

from 1st January 2009). The amendment requires an
entity to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for use or sale) as part of the
cost of that asset. The option of immediately
expensing those borrowing costs will be removed.
The Group will apply HKAS 23 (Amended) from 1st
January 2009 but is currently not applicable to the

Group as there are no qualifying assets.

KA (BEZETNF-—A—BHZERE
W) c BRI HEEECKEERERE
A BENEEAGEREE (BAE—R
KEEEFNFEARKLECEE) 2 &
DEABTER (ERZBERERZ —
B e FTEERNRBERFERKNAX
Mo AEBEBE_TTNF—A—HR
FER BB ERIZFE 235 (KBE]) - A
RAESEREE BRI TERARASE
°
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bf ¥ | R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRAs 2. R H BB ZEBUBERE
(Continued) R (&)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing (c) MARENRASE L B|IZBAIRAH 2 %

62

standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 8, “Operating segments” (effective from 1st
January 2009). IFRS/HKFRS 8 replaces IAS/HKAS
14 and aligns segment reporting with the
requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
“Disclosures about segments of an enterprise and
related information”. The new standard requires a
“management approach”, under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that
used for internal reporting purposes. The Group will
apply IFRS/HKFRS 8 from 1st January 2009. The
expected impact is still being assessed in detail by
management, but it appears likely that the number of
reportable segments, as well as the manner in which
the segments are reported, will change in a manner
that is consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. As goodwill is
allocated to Groups of cash-generating units based
on segment level, the change will also require
management to reallocate goodwill to the newly
identified operating segments. Management does not
anticipate that this will result in any material

impairment to the goodwill balance.

I~ AT R2E (8)

EEMIEERS[EENE | (BE=FTAN
F—A—HARBRER - BREMBREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRAs
(Continued)

(d) Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet
effective and not relevant for the Group’s operations

The following interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2008 or later periods but are not relevant for
the Group’s operations:

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11, “Group and treasury share transactions”
(effective from 1st March 2007);

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12, “Service concession arrangements”
(effective from 1st January 2008);

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13, “Customer loyalty programmes” (effective
from 1st July 2008); and

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14, “IAS/HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding requirements
and their interaction” (effective from 1
January 2008).

FEAzRE

2. RAEHRNEBT 2EBMBRE
R ()

(d) MAERERFAEMEENRBAB 2R

UTRERMBRALERZEE - A&
BAR-_TTN\F-A—BXH2E&HKE
ZeitEA R R BERA - BEAS

Bz & EER

EE (ARMBERS
REZEE)

&k (BRI BRE
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2EZEE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEEFERME
POLICIES

3.1 Preparation of financial standards 3.1 4 B 5 7% % Al

3.1a Basis of preparation S.1a #g R H
EENBREZXZFER QA ZEE M
WMERDBBEELSV B HREELNR
B o LRE MR TIIBERE £ A
BHlREE -

The consolidated financial statements of
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

RENEBTAMBHRESEN 2B
WKRAGERE THARS AT - F
BEMNARERANEE S BERB
RPTERLHE - P ReEHE R
BN BAHAREM BRI ZRE
R R 2 BB RS -

judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 5.

3.1b Basis of consolidation 81biREaHE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate REMBREREARG RENB
the financial statements of the Company and its REBEHET-A=1T—HI1Z
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year. B Rk o
The consolidated financial statements incorporate REMBHREZEHE AT A

the effects of the Group Reorganisation which SEEHCEE -
has been accounted for by using merger

accounting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Preparation of financial standards (Continued)
3.1b Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus cost
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fiar value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in
the income statement.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions,
balances, income and expenses within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

3.

EEHBEME @)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Preparation of financial standards (Continued)
3.1b Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiary companies are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of
the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority
in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary company’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

3.2 Interest in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

TESTHEBE @)
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M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

TESTHEBE @)

3.2 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 32 RAMBAR Z R (&)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement .

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 3.9). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

AEBRWESTHEB KB B AR
AR - WBRASRRBARKSESR
E BETRAIARMELEIEAESR
BEZRFE  MEBEEREFTRAE - %
GaHRBAZCHENEEREKEZE
BEMHIARE  BRREBEREHRZAF
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FE: AEERNRSREREE -
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BERWEG TIAEE - (RIEXZIRMEPT
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FEELNE  URREASERAZ
BURTE —2 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

1

POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Interests in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified
on acquisition (Note 3.9).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised
in the consolidated income statement’.

The Company may alternatively adopt an accounting policy to
recognise dilution gains or losses in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEBHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Interests in associates (Continued) 33 RBE AR 2R (&)
In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in EARRBIZEERBERA - REEERA]
associated companies are stated at cost less 2B LK AENRBEEEERTR
provision for impairment losses (Note 3.8). The results (Mf3E3.8) o Bt Al Z%ii == RANYNE|
of associated companies are accounted for by the ZE Wk EKREBE A
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

3.4 Foreign currencies 3.4 HhHE
Functional and presentation currency ) 6E % 3| BR & &
ltems included in the financial statements of each of AEEEZERB I Y BREMBIEZE
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency =i

PRERBCEME 2 EELBIR
of the primary economic environment in which the ReEE([NEEEXK])EFE - AEE 2
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The NERER EHREEABARE (TARK]) -
consolidated financial statements are presented in FEVBEREUAAREZ7 -
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Group’s functional

and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions other than RMB are BRARBIINZINEZZGHERRZEBZ
translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the BITEXRERNEER  -BAZERH
dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and EENMILEE R 2 EXRFRAINEGHE
losses resulting from the settlement of such EMEERBEMEE ZEL B -
transactions and from the translation at year end BRI RER -

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. FESHEEBE (&)

3.4 Foreign currencies (Continued) 3.4 I (&)

70

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount

are recognised in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Foreign currencies (Continued)

3.5

Group companies (Continued)

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the income statement as part of

the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Revenue recognition

Revenues from transfer of new drug development and
formulation data are recognised upon transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the compound and data are
delivered to customers.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. FESFHHEME @)

3.5 Revenue recognition (Continued) 3.5 Wzt (&)

72

Revenues from contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms and,
where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Payments received that are related to future
performance are deferred and recorded as revenues
as they are earned over the specified future
performance periods.

Subject to the terms as stated in the technology
transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the
technology transferred is applied, the Group may
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised
when the right to receive the income is established.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s drug technology is recognised
when the right to receive is established.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment have been
established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2

POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment?.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are credited to other reserves in
shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset previous
increases of the same asset are charged against other
reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are
charged to the income statement. Each year the
difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the
income statement and depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost is transferred from “other
reserves” to “retained earnings”.

Management may choose to keep these gains/(losses) in equity until
the acquired asset affects profit or loss. At this time, management
should reclassify the gains/(losses) into profit or loss.

3. FESHEEBE (&)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEBHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 36 ¥ BMERSE (&)

74

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment less accumulated
impairment losses to the estimated residual value,
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery 10% - 20%
Furniture, fixture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other (losses)/gains — net,
in the income statements. When revalued assets are
sold, the amounts included in other reserves are
transferred to retained earnings.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.7

3.8

New drug technology development costs

Expenditure on research activities on new drug
technology is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated asset arising from new drug
technology development expenditure is recognised
only if it is anticipated that the development costs
incurred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered
through future commercial activity. The resultant asset
is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful
life. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, new drug technology development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not
yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEBHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 Financial Assets 30 ERMEE

76

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivable, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determine the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as “trade
and other receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the balance sheet (Notes 3.10 and
3.11).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEHHEBME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.9 Financial Assets (Continued) 3OSRMEE (B)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (c) AIRHELHEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEHHEBME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.9 Financial Assets (Continued) 3OSRMEE (B)

) AHHELHEE (&)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

78

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in the
income statement within “other (losses)/gains —
net”, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences on monetary securities are
recognised in profit or loss; translation differences
on non-monetary securities are recognised in
equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and
non-monetary securities classified as available for

sale are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as “gains and losses from

investment securities”.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEBHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 Financial Assets (Continued) 3OSRMEE (B)
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) (c) At EL R EE (&)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated AHEEEFANERAEREFE 2
using the effective interest method is recognised FMEEBRRRNERBEMEA—
in the income statement as part of other income. o AL EREmT A ZREA
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments RS B U ER B B8 3k I8 2 R F T TE
are recognised in the income statement as part REBmixNERRHMKA —FB
of other income when the Group’s right to receive 7 o

payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based ERECREZATEBEERZ
on current bid prices. If the market for a financial EREHE  HEREBHEMEEZLT
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), SW RN ERB(ERIELTESFM
the Group established fair value by using valuation =) AEEFAGEELEREATF
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s B> ZEREAREMNRAIBEATR
length transactions, reference to other AR5 - 2ZRBMERZEMT
instruments that are substantially the same, B BB ERESNMEMBEE
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing BRX  ROFNATSHENEE
models, making maximum use of market inputs DIERBERER 28R -

and relying as little as possible on entity-specific

inputs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEHHEBME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.9 Financial Assets (Continued) 3OSRMEE (B)

) AHHELHEE (&)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

80

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a Group of financial assets in impaired.
In the case of equity securities classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered as an indicator that the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement.
Impairment testing of trade receivables is
described in Note 3.10.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

TESTHEBE @)

3.10Trade and other receivables 310 EWERFEEE EWRRIE

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue)
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within “selling
and marketing costs”. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against

“selling and marketing costs” in the income statement.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEBHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Share capital 312 B 7R
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily LAY A s o of Bl 0] BB B2 5T
redeemable preference shares are classified as Ko asaE (fFE3.13) o

liabilities (Note 3.13).
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Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of

new shares or options are shown in equity as a

82

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted
from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received (net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects) is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. TEFHHEME @)

3.13 Convertible bonds 33 AR E S

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability
in the balance sheet, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
derivative component is determined using-an option-
pricing model; and this amount is carried as a
derivative liability until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the liability component and is carried as
a liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. In
subsequent periods, the derivative component is
measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognised in the income statement until extinguished
on conversion or redemption.

3.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

3.15 Retirement benefits scheme

The Group participates in employee social security
plans of the PRC, including defined contribution
pension, medical, housing and other welfare benefits,
organised by the government authorities in
accordance with relevant regulations.

According to the relevant regulations, premium and
welfare benefit contributions are remitted to the social
welfare authorities on a monthly basis and are
calculated based on percentages of the total salary
of employees, subject to a certain ceiling.
Contributions to the plans are charged to the income
statement as incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEBHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 Related parties SI6BEAL

84

Two parties are considered to be related if one party
has ability, directly or indirectly to control the other
party are exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decision.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence.

3.17 Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs
of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
development including costs that have been incurred
for the provision of pharmaceutical application,
registration and testing services, is calculated using
the first-in, first out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Where the outcome of a pharmaceutical development
and clinical research contract or service can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date, as
measured by the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date bear to the total
contract costs or the proportion that contract revenue
billed or recognised for work performed to date bear
to the total contract sums, whichever is the lower,
except where this would not be representative of the

stage of completion.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

TESTHEBE @)

3.17 Work-in-progress (Continued) SITERR (&)

Where the outcome of a contract or service cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable that they will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

When it is probable that the total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

3.18 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit is the profit for the year,
determined in accordance with the rules established
by the taxation authorities, upon which income taxes

are payable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. FESHEEBE (&)

3.18 Income tax (Continued) 3.18 FRBH (&)

86

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

TESTHEBE @)

3.18 Income tax (Continued) 3.18 FRBH (&)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

3.19 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on

a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

3.20 Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEBHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Share-based payments (Continued) 320 AR X (B)

88

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Black-Scholes Model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is
taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to income statement
for the year of review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when

it is released directly to retained earnings).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

SEFLETASH-ALER

POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised in income statement on a systemic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted in arriving at the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset.

FAIR VALUE RISK

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk). The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.
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4. FAIR VALUE RISK (Continued) 4. RFERRE (#)

90

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-
term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of
interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial

instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
accounting estimates and judgements need to be made.
The Group evaluates these based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equate the related actual results.
Estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.
(a) Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
3(j). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Trade debtors

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods have
been exceeded for a specified period. However, from
time to time, the Group may experience delays in
collection. Where recoverability of trade debtor
balances are called into doubts, specific provisions
for bad and doubtful debts are made based on credit
status of the customers, the aged analysis of the
trade receivable balances and write-off history. Certain
receivables may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible and result in
a subsequent write-off of the related receivable to
the income statement. Changes in the collectibility of
trade receivables for which provisions are not made

could affect our results of operations.
(c) Useful lives of fixed assets

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates
the useful lives of fixed assets in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded.
The useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is
acquired based on historical experience, the expected
usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as
technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
(Continued)

(d) Impairment of work-in-progress

(e)

Provision for slowing-moving work-in-progress is
made based on the ageing and accomplishment of
certain milestone stage such as clinical studies permit
during the process of development. The assessment
of the provision amount required

management judgement and estimates. Where the

involving

actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of work-in-progress and provision
charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment,
or certain legal events. The interpretation of such
events requires judgment from management with
respect to whether such an event has occurred. Upon
the occurrence of triggering events, the carrying
amounts of non-current assets are reviewed to assess
whether their recoverable amounts have declined
below their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount
is the present value of estimated net future cash flows
which the Group expects to generate from the future
use of the asset, plus the assets residual value on
disposal. Where the recoverable amount of non-
current assets is less than its carrying value, an
impairment loss is recognised to write the assets
down to its recoverable amount.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBER2EER
2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Transfer of technology for B R B
new drugs and new drugs B Al B 5 4
development ks 595 5,853
Contracted pharmaceutical BEARE
development services and RrEE 2
clinical research services EEESE 3
associated with technology 2 IR 7 &
transferred by the Group & PR Ot 7% AR 75 17,367 23,445
Contracted pharmaceutical R 7K €2 (& £ 1l
development services and R ERE
clinical research services not =Rk 37
associated with technology % AR 75 2
transferred by the Group & PR O 9% AR 75 18,616 26,007
Import registration services # M 5T AR 7 28 =
Royalty income R A 1,369 1,022
Sales of active pharmaceutical SHE B M EEH
ingredients products FX 7 EE fh 754 725
38,729 57,052

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by

segment has not been presented as over 90% of the

Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical

research and development, registration, application and

testing in the PRC and all assets were located in the

PRC for both years.
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7. OTHER REVENUE 7. Hib s
2007 2006
—EELHF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Bad debts recovery I [ 5 Bk - 929
Bank interest income #RAT A B WA 574 66
Convertible bond interest income AR EH B A 952 =
Gain on disposal of associate k=R ANC g - 241
Gain on foreign exchange PE 5, W &% 146 456
Government subsidy BB E 598 14
Interest income on available-for-sales At HE &R & E 2
financial assets FE WA - 1,881
Investment gain ‘ZE WA 163 -
Sundry sales MIRHE - 735
Sundry income MIERA - 1,199
2,433 5,631
FINANCE COSTS B EH
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Bank charges RITE R 325 43
Exchange loss S 3,376 1,228
CB Expense AmkESFAX 597 =
CB Interest AR ESFE 1,040 -
Interest expenses on bank overdraft  $R77:% X A 2 X - 278
5,338 1,549
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting)

B Bt A 2 7

BB A8 AU DR (FEA) T3IE B &5

the following items: Bk
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Depreciation e 1,769 529
Employee benefit expenses (note 10) & B & & (M 5E10) 10,195 6,873
Amortisation of new drugs technology st ATTEFI Sz 2
including in administrative expenses ¥ % 1 il & $4 1,149 795
Auditors’ remuneration % E BN Bl 633 361
Minimum lease payments BB HELOE
paid under operating lease =EHEE 2,530 1,756
Provision for trade receivables JEWE 5 BR SR - 4,798
Provision for work-in-progress £ 8 R - 1,163
Loss on disposal of associate nfcpi RN 934 =
10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10.EEEB/A X H
2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARET T
Wages and salaries TENFH® 9,409 6,502
Retirement benefits R K48 A 5T &l
scheme contributions K 862 576
Lapse of share-based options A % 1 2k 3K (76) (205)
10,195 6,873
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individual

The five highest paid individuals included two (2006:

10.BEER/A X E (&)

b)) EBZBESHFMAL

AEZmEmFMALTeERE (ZEE7

e

two) directors of the Company. The emoluments of FWB)ARBES - HE#H =% (=ZF
the remaining three (2006: three) individuals were as ERE:=ZB) 20T -
follows:
The Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Salaries and allowances e ROERL 816 362
Retirement benefits scheme R K48 A 5T &l
contributions K 25 23
841 385

The emoluments of each of the five highest paid
employees are less than HKD1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any directors of the Company or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments in the year.

TEEmFHEEZHMEH LR
1,000,000/ 7T °

FRAKEHEARNRARESEHAA
REFMALTMERMME - ERMA
HEMAREE R 2 RE) - SESRER
B - E S IS F R ER (A B
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

11.INCOME TAX

M. 8%

2007 2006
—gBtFE —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
The charge represents: MEZ LR :
PRC enterprise income tax REZEMET 788 3,175

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for, as the
Group had no taxable profits in Hong Kong for both years.
The Company’s subsidiaries are subject to PRC income
tax on their assessable profits.

PRC enterprise income tax is computed according to the

relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

Beijing Dezhong-Venture Pharmaceutical Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Dezhong VP”) and Beijing
Venture-Biopharm Services Co., Ltd. (“V Biopharm”),
subsidiaries of the Company, qualify as foreign investment
industrial and high technology enterprises and are subject
to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 15 per cent on

its income after offsetting prior year’s losses.

No provision for deferred tax has been made as there
are no material temporary differences at the balance sheet
date.

ERASEXMEFEANLBERTSEEE
fa] FEER Bt )aa ) B 8 5 B B A 1S B A H 3B
(IR NN ] Al DS NI =R g e i
MRBEEH -

FECEMEHIRETEEBERERARM

ARBINBARIERERBEEEY IR
BER2A([ERER]) - tREBE2BLEE
MEBERAR([B2EX]) RIERERER
BEMBRARARNAIIBEREIELER
BAREEZER - At ZFRF KA
REBHBEFEZBBRR  BRM15%ZF
BEXMER -

HREERTESEREREER - MW RH
EIER IR VR LB o

i)



1,888 100.0

32

1,073

(122)

358 19.0

(822) (43.5)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12.9% BMERRXE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvement Machinery B vehicles Total
HEEHB He RERRE RE ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
The Group KEE
Cost K&
At 1 January 2006 RZEER E-A—H 1,778 5,837 2,962 1,274 11,851
Additions ER 668 1,365 235 - 2,268
Disposal & - - (826) (200) (1,026)
At 31 December 2006 RZBEAEFZA=1T—H 2,446 7,202 2,371 1,074 13,003
Addition R 5,811 101 367 - 6,279
Disposal e - (14) - - (14)
At 31 December 2007 RZEZLEFZA=1T—H 8,257 7,289 2,738 1,074 19,358
Accumulated depreciation SitHE
At 1 January 2006 RZZE, E-A—-H 650 2,700 1,503 437 5,290
Charge for the year TEEXH 855 844 268 100 2,067
Eliminated on disposal R ERER - - (826) (200) (1,026)
At 31 December 2006 RZZERE+TZA=T-H 1,505 3,544 945 337 6,331
Charge for the year TEEXH 899 586 252 32 1,769
Eliminated on disposal =l 3 = 9) - - )
At 31 December 2007 RZZELE+ZA=T-H 2,404 4,121 1,197 369 8,091
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+EFZA=1—H 5,853 3,168 1,541 705 11,267
At 31 December 2006 RZBERETZA=T-H 941 3,658 1,426 737 6,762

101



102

BERBEEARASE — ST LFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At B & = Mt &
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HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

12.9% - BERRB (&)

Furniture,
Fixtures and
The Company equipment
PN B £BERRE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost R A
At 31 December 2006 RZBERFTZRA=+—
and 31 December 2007 FZZEE+FF+A=+— 75
Accumulated depreciation At E
At 1 January 2006 RZEZEFEF—H—H 39
Charge for the year REE T H 15
At 31 December 2006 RZEEREFTZA="+— 54
Charge for the year RNEEFH 15
At 31 December 2007 R_ZEZE+tHFE+_-_A=+—H 69
Net carrying amount REFEE
At 31 December 2007 RZEZLEFT—HA="4— 6
At 31 December 2006 RZEEREFTZA="+— 21




VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At B & = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

13.NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY 13. 5 B H 1l
The Group rEE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost or valuation FR 2 B, 14 1B
At 1 January 2006 RZEEF—H—H 3,063
Additions b7 40
Transfer from work-in-progress during the year RAFEEFEA TR M 6,262
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERE+-_A=+—H 9,365
Additions R -
Transfer from work-in-progress during the year RAFEEFEA TR R =
At 31 December 2007 R=ZEBLtE+=-H=+—H 9,365
Amortisation and impairment # 85 &R B
At 1 January 2006 RZZTEEZF—H—H 463
Amortisation charge for the year NEF#ET N 795
At 31 December 2006 RZZEEREF+-_A=+—H 1,258
Amortisation charge for the year REFHEHETH 1,149
At 31 December 2007 R=ZZBtHE+=-HA=+—H 2,407
Net carrying amount BR R E
At 31 December 2007 R=ZBBtE+=-A=+—H 6,958
At 31 December 2006 RZZEEREF+-_A=+—H 8,107
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M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007

13.

14.

NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY (Continued)

The intangible assets included above have finite useful
lives, over which the assets are amortised. The
amortisation period for development costs incurred on
the Group’s new drugs technology is five years. The
directors considered that there were no impairment for
the year ended 31 December 2007. Details of critical
accounting estimates were set out in Note 5(a).

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

13. M E R ()

FRAAFIZEVEEAGRERFH TR
LB A - RSB ERMATS &
BRAZEBHEBRARTE  EFRANEE
L FF A=t B IEFEWEEM
WE - FRAEZG et 2 FBH N W
5(a) °

14. A B AR 2

The Company

PN

2007 2006

—EELHF ZTER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBTT
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - KA 30,374 30,374
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U Bt B & R K IE 37,043 21,746
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT /B A Bl 3k IA (2,674) (2,674)
64,743 49,446

The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book
value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the Group on the date of the Group
Reorganisation.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The
amounts will not be repayable within twelve months from
the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amounts are
shown as non-current.

FLETRMDZRADRAEERNEEEHEA
HEMBAREREEFERAEFE -

FEY, () B R R RIBREIER - 2.8
KEEFEEEGNK - ARFNBEBARGEER
HEEF T EARERE - Bt BERFIAE
mBAEEL7
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HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2007 are as follows:

14ARMBRE 2R (&)

ARTR=FELE+=A=+—A2EE
[ A R BB T

Place of Registered
incorporation/ capital issued Attributable
establishment/ and fully paid equity
operations share capital interest held Principal
Company name gAY/ B/ BRTEMER gL activities
REAER mEhy REZRE e £ TEER
Directly Indirectly
Ei B #
Beijing Dezhong VP Beijing, the PRC RMB7,154,420 = 94.512% The research and development

Technology

Development Co Ltd!"
TREREZENRN

RERRARFO

Hainan Sinican
Bio-labs Limited®

Hanzhong
Venturepharm
Pharm-Chemical
Company Limited®

EREREENT
BERAR

PELR

Hainan, the PRC
HE R

Hanzhong, the PRC
PEEH

ARET7,154,4207C

US$360,000
360,000 T

US$600,000
600,000% 70

= 100%

= 51%

of new drug preparation, raw
materials, supplementary
materials (excipients and
additives) and biodrugs;
technological transfer
and services
RERAENERE - RAH
BERME (BEERAME)
RENER : RNERRRY

The research, development
and production of drugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer
of and services for the
research and development
of biodrugs, natural drugs
and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs

RE FAERLEZER RAEMm

ReamEm: HERERLED

Bm RRBmRAKER R

BERRE  Em BEHER

R

Sales and manufacturing
of active pharmaceutical
ingredients products
HERHERREHRAER
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HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2007 are as follows: (Continued)

14ARMBRE 2R (&)

ARRAR-BZLF+_A=1t—RZEE
MBABFBWOT - (&)

Place of Registered
incorporation/ capital issued Attributable
establishment/ and fully paid equity
operations share capital interest held Principal
Company name gAY/ B/ BRTEMER gL activities
G mEhy REZRE e £ TERH
Directly Indirectly
E¥ B #

P.K. Pharmatech Mumbai, India INR100,000 - 50% Inactive

Private Limited® HERE 100,000E0 % & 1t (note (a)) VEREXH
(Mizt(a)

Beijing Venture- Beijing, the PRC RMB1,655,747 = 100% The research development
Sunshine RER ARHA1,655,7477C and production of drugs,
Pharmaceutical natural drugs and synthetic
Technology Co., Ltd drugs; technological transfer
(V Biopharm”)® of and services for the

IrEZHABERK research and development of
BRAR([E2FK])0 biodrugs, natural drugs and

synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and clinical
research of drugs

HE - REREEER  RAZR
RERER  FRRRZENER -
ARERREKER BINEZER
R% ERZERRERBERAE

Venturepharm British Virgin Islands US$100 100% = Investment holding
Laboratories (BV) (‘BVP) 100% 7 RERR
Limited (“VP (BVI)")" EBERAEE([BV))

Venturepharm Hong Kong, the PRC HK$10,000 - 100% Inactive
Life Science Capital HEFE 10,0007 7t TEREXS
Limited®

EranHBREARAAS
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HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2007 are as follows: (Continued)

Company name
G

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operations
HRAL/ HL/
B

Registered

capital issued
and fully paid

share capital

BERTEMER

RARERA

14ARMBRE 2R (&)

ARRAR-BZLF+_A=1t—RZEE
MBABFBWOT - (&)

Attributabl
equity

e

interest held

gl

e
Directly
EE

Indirectly
B#

Principal
activities
TEER

Venovo Pharma
US Inc.®

ant- gk
> 38
> i
2 H

Beijing Venture-Sun
Medical Technology
Co., Ltd

tREZG K ESR
BRARY

VPSCRO Group Inc®

British Virgin Islands
('BVI)
RBRZES ([BVI])

Beijing, the PRC
RE R

Beijing, the PRC
AR

British Virgin Islands
EBRLHE

US$1
170

US$200,000
200,000% 7T

U$$200,000
200,000 T

US$780
780X T

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding

RAER

The research, development
and production of new drugs,
natural drugs, and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer
of and services for research
and development of
biodrugs, natural drugs and
synthetic drugs,
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs

HE - AEREENER RAER
ReapZm: RERBEEDER -
AREmRAKER L RINERR
% Em BRHERERAE

The research development
and production of drugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer
of and services for the
research and development of
biodrugs, natural drugs and
synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and clinical
research of drugs

HE REREEZm RAZm
RepEn  RERAZENER -
ARERREKER BNEER
K% Eme BRAERERAR

Inactive
TERRER
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15. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

15.ABE QR 2

The Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B TR ARETT

As at 1 January n—A—H 3,235 4,047
Additions in investment cost & KA IE R - =
Disposal of investment HEKRE (2,235) (759)
Impairment of investment ®EREAE (167) -
Share of associates’ results JEMEEE & R R A

— loss before taxation —BR BRI B 18 - (53)

— taxation — I8 - =
As at 31 December R+—A=+—8” 833 3,235

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2007,
which is held indirectly by the Company, are as follows:

RZZEZE+F+_A=+—H BHARFH
BRAZASBEBERRFEAT :

Profit/ Interest

(loss) held

Name of associate Place of incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenue Al fiEE

BENTER aF B B L 3t 26 BE =R Iy &% (B5#) &

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR%®TT AR®TT AR®TR

NovaDerm Inc British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) 2,081 2,081 - - 40%
EBELHES ([BVI)

During the year, the Company disposed all interest in
Zhejiang Dankong Venturepharm Co. Ltd at a
consideration of RMB1,300,000. RMB1,150,000 was
received during the year and RMB150,000 was

subsequently received after year end.

FR - RAARIURERAKY1,300,0007T
HEMIREEEZBE TR AR IR
= o FABWEARY1,150,000C © AR
#5150,0007T B, 1A FF 45 H & WA ©
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALES FINANCIAL ASSETS 16. A HHEHESREE
Group and Group and
Company Company
SERAFA SERAFA
2007 2006
—EBELHF —ETERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Available-for-sales financial assets AfEHESMEE - 19,248
The available-for-sales financial assets of RMB19,248,000 AEBERT TAKE 2RITE A
had been pledged to secure bank overdraft granted to & &5l & E ARK19,248,0007T °
the Group.
Details of the investment bonds included the followings: KREBHFFBERRE
Terms/
Bond issuer Maturity period Interest rate Cost
BERTA FHBHA = D%
LLOYDS TSB Bank
15 years US$ callable dual range accrual note 2005-2020 8.6% coupon rate US$700,000
LLOYDS TSB Bank —EERFE_T_ZTF ZEXB.62 700,0003 7T

15EMETABEEERAZRE
DEUTSCHE BANK AG LONDON BRANCH
15 years US$ callable non-inversion 2005-2020
DEUTSCHE BANK AG LONDON BRANCH —ETHEE-T-TF
16EMETABEABEAES

8.3% coupon rate
FRE8IE

US$1,900,000
1,900,000 7T
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17. UNLISTED INVESTMENT

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

As at 31 December 2007, the investment in securities
comprised of the followings:

17k LHRE

R=BBLET-A=t+—F &

o

The Group
EH
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR T T
Investment in unlisted securities BEBREINZ
outside Hong Kong FELEMHE - 9,396
As at 31 December 2007, the Group has an investment AEBKE

in unlisted securities outside Hong Kong.

According to HKAS 32 and 39, unlisted investment
outside Hong Kong is considered by directors as

R_ZEZEL+F+_A=+—8H
NBEBRINELETES o .

REBEE B ST ERFE325% 1395k - BHER
SMELETRERESRIFAIRLESREE

available-for-sale financial assets as follows: R
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
As at 31st December Rt-—A=+—H - 9,396
Listed/Unlisted investment EWEETRE
— investment in unlisted investment —REBEBRINELT
outside Hong Kong BEZEE - 6,080
— Amount due from —EW3E LT
unlisted investment & 2 ;IE - 3,316

9,396
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18. WORK-IN-PROGRESS 18. & Mm
The Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR T T
Work-in-progress £ & mn
— contracted (note (a)) —BET4 (fH3E () 43,521 18,039
Work-in-progress £ & i
- not-contracted (note (b)) — R ET 49 (B 5% (b)) 28,689 35,316
Allowance for work-in-progress 1 8 o B 1 (5,707) (6,421)
66,503 46,934
(a) The balance represents the project costs incurred (a) ZEEHIBERTH M RMAE ®a
for the contracted research and development, i M AREREEEZIBE KA ¢
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing MEARR B ARERRE 2 EE RBBER
services, but have not met the extent of the milestone 168 3K T oK B Y HR 4B P& 3 R 5K I8 ©
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms.
(b) The balance comprises of development costs incurred (o) ZEHRIERIEARINERIER L E 2
with the intention of outright sales as technology BERRA  BRARFIMLE L °

transfer but have not been contracted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

The fair value of trade receivables are as follows:

19.ENE Z IR

RWESERZ ATFENT :

2007 2006

—EELEF ZETRX
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Trade receivables FE U E 5 BR 3K 43,251 30,553
Less: Impairment of receivables B R FORE (12,530) (12,530)
Trade receivables — net e E 5 R FF 30,721 18,023

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to
its trade customers. As of 31st December 2007, trade
receivables of RMB12,530,000 (2006: RMB12,530,000)
were impaired. There was no provision as of 31st
December 2007 (2006: RMB3,457,000). It was assessed
that a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

AEBERETHESGRFPZTHEERR
9Q0H - R=ZFEZtF+=—A=+—0 ' Bl
B 5 ERAARKA12,530,000C (ZZEZ X
& AR¥12,530,0007T) HIERE - R =
TELF+ A=+ BYEREGLR (=
T RNF : AR¥ES,457,00000) © RIEFTE
& B ERERRTER Y E - ZE KR
KRBT -

The Group
rEE

2007 2006
—EERLF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
1 - 30 days 1H —30H 14,815 1,723
31 - 60 days 31H —60H 2,676 5,752
61 — 90 days 61H —90H 4,353 54
91 — 180 days 91H —180H - 8,752
Over 180 days i@ 180H 8,877 1,742
30,721 18,023
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not
impaired is as follows:

19.BNE Z R (&)

I HRE 2 FEWE F RN 2 BR R

DT :

2007 2006

—EELE —ZEEREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B T AR T T

Past due without impaired i 2R B N ORE 8,877 10,494

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not held any collateral over these balances.

RER T ARVERE 2 BEFRBATIKBRZH
BP  MELEP&KIIAIEHEHRIERNRL

BEEHERERENERERIIREZ R E

AEBEERFEFGCENETP °

RIBAEL

% ARARENBUEERINEEERLIRE
BERNE  BEEERABAAZHKEERK -
UL AR(E T B 5% F R RSB E
B ARBEYEFARSHNTAER

O
on °
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follow:

19.BNE Z R (&)

EWE ZERFOREREES T

Group
TEH
2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR TTT
At 1st January n—A—H 12,530 9,073
Provision for receivable impairment JE WS BR SO B e - 3,457
At 31st December K+=-—A=+—8 12,530 12,530

The other classes within trade receivables do not contain
impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value receivables. The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

WE ZEAANEMERTSEREEE -

RAHZREBRY  FHEZSAERARAR
FEEUARR o A5 B &R A A HEH
ERER -

20 ENRIE - RERHMBWRARE

The prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as FERFIE HE RHMBEWRIERT -
follows:
The Group
rEH

2007 2006
—EELE ZETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Prepayments T 3B 7,763 415
Deposits B 317 6,360
Other receivables H i & I SR IA 26,761 11,048
34,841 17,823
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

20.FANFIR - HMEREMERFIR (&)

BNRA - e REAMRYEIR 2 REE R
HRAFEMESE -

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other

receivables approximate their fair values.

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 21. BB E R FARIE

Details of the amounts due from related companies are EWEENRRIBZFRBTET ¢

as follows:

The Group The Company
rE ¥ YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE ZEERFE ZEEtE 2T RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT AR%®TR ARETRT
Name of companies AR EH
Sanmenxia Sinoway =PIIRER 4
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd HWERRA]
(“Sinoway Pharmaceutical) (EHEEER]) 636 760 - -
Venturepharm Inc.
(VP Inc”) (12) 536 6 25
Hanzhong Venturepharm EREEBELT
Pharm Chemical Company BRAA
Limited 5 - - -
629 1,296 6 25

Both companies are the subsidiaries of the Company’s

substantial shareholders.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

MERARER/RARAREBRERZMBAT -

)

i3
Falg
5

BERFELEER 28

B EKE
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21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

The maximum balance due from Sinoway Pharmaceutical,
VP Inc. and Hanzhong Venturepharm Pharm Chemical
Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2007
was RMB194,000, RMB1,525,000 and RMB22,000
respectively.

Sinoway Pharmaceutical is a domestic owned enterprise
established in the PRC. In accordance with Chapter 20
of the Listing Rules of GEM, the Company was required
to disclose its continuing financial assistance which the
percentage ratio is less than 2.5% or the percentage
ratio is equal to or more than 2.5% but less than 25%
and the total consideration is less than HKD10,000,000,
but no such disclosure was made by the Company. Such
non-disclosure may constitute to a breach of the Listing
Rules of GEM.

21. RN E R FARIE (8)

BAERE VP Inc. REFBEEEE/LTH
RARRBE-ZTZTLF+_A=1T—81
FEZE&mERFIED B R AKE194,000
- AR ¥1,525,0007T & A R # 22,000

o

di

BB SNREK L NEER B -
BIEAI R LR R F 20 - AR AEER
EEEDHER25%KE D EEFER2.5%
fEmR25%EEN25% K BRE DR
10,000,000 L Z HE B ER) - BARRQ A
WHREHBBEHKE - ZAREIELEEZTA
ATREEARE RBIZER LA 21TA °
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22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

RBATVTEEBRESCRZEMEE

Group and Company

AEBRALT
2007 2006
—ETLE —DTAAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

Dual currency investment HEKILE 24,363 =
Money market funds ERmMEES 39,285 =
Investment funds KEES 8,761 =

72,409 -

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented within the section on investing activities in
the cash flow statement.

Changes in fair values of other financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in other gains —
net in the income statement.

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

HitRAFEEBRRLRIEMEETR
ReERERIREZTHHES -

HiRAFEEBRRCKRIEMEELZR
FEEFHDHEARERAZEMBAR -

FERAES Y A PENRELNERTS
ZEABHE -






120

BERBEEARASE — ST LFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At B & = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2007

24. TRADE PAYABLES

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

20 EHE B R

The Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELE ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR T T
Trade payables FERT & 5 RN 285 463

The Group receives an average credit period of 90 days

from its trade suppliers. The aged analysis of trade

payables of the Group at the balance sheet date is as

follows:

BHHERRETAKREZYHEERR
90R @ REEBAKERENE S RX 2Rk

i

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR T T

Within 90 days 90H A 17 52
91 — 180 days 91H =180H - -
181 — 365 days 181 H £ 365H - 282
Over 365 days B 3E365H 268 129
285 463

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their

fair values.

BNEZEREEERR

NFEEE -
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25.ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

25. 5T X

HRHMENKRE

The Group The Company
rEH KA F
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE —_TTF ZEEEHFE —TITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTnn AR®TT AR¥®TnR ARETT
Accruals FE 5t I8 832 440 114 =
Other payables H {th J& (< 2B 4,405 645 - 440
5,237 1,085 114 440
26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 26.;FEBE
The Group The Company
rEE RAF]
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEEF —ZEZTEREFE ZBELFE ZZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT AR¥®TR ARKETTT
Bank borrowings RITEE

— secured — A - 6,451 - 6,451
— unsecured — 4R - = - -
- 6,451 - 6,451
The bank borrowings are settled within one year and RITEEAR—FRNEER  TRABAEES
classified as current liabilities. The carrying amount of o AEERARRIEEZEEEHEEARTF

the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings approximate
to their fair value.

BERE
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28. RESERVES (Continued) 28.f# & (&)

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the
statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve balance
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders. The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of
directors and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall appropriate 5% or 10% of its net profit after taxation
as the statutory enterprise expansion fund. The director
shall have discretion in determining the percentage within
the range specified by the relevant PRC laws and

regulations.

Special fund

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the company
which was the holding company of other members of the
Group prior to the Group Reorganisation, and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued thereof pursuant

to the Group Reorganisation.

REABTBEIEGISOERZRE - ARER
RERZZHERREBERRERENZ
10%BAEEBRFERES  BERBER
ZMB R B EMARA50% © MARR 7 AR
B AR EERALN - FHRESETR
DIRSH Rt BESIBMER - HAKEFS
RAAREME L

EELEBREES

REABEHEAGIRZEZRZRE @ ARFR
FREKZZHBERARARERBRAEN 2
5%FHN10%EAEZELERRES - EFH
RIBEA BT BDAGI SRR R E 2 SE MR
BEEADL -

BRESE

FrlfE#EEREVP BV (SEEENAEER
R B AR 2 IR AT B ip E{E M AR F
RESESEMBTZROEEMERZE
B o
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28. RESERVES (Continued) 28.f# & (&)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional contributions
made by the shareholders of the Company prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
and the additional contributions made by the minority
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company during the
year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the net assets of the subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium, capital reserve,
contributed surplus and accumulated (loss)/profit which
in aggregate amounted to RMB21,620,000 (2006:
RMB27,301,000). In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends shall be payable out of
the profit or other reserves, including the share premium
account, of the Company and, under the Companies Law
(2002 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands, the Company
must be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business immediately following the
distribution of dividend.

BEXRfEE
BAEE R AR B BIRN AR 7] B

R EMAIAEZBINEE - AR R A
BRALVERRNFEAMIERINIE -

BB

il

ARBZEGRBRENBARZEERE
RARBIREEBEEHZHTUER R Z R
HEMERZZHE -

AARAHDSETRREZFEREBERMD R
B  EARE  ERRBRER (BER) &
Ao & HEXARK21,620,000C (ZZEZ X
& AR#¥27,301,0007T) ° RIEARRQ G A
BER BAZBREBEAEBARGREFMKEM
FEEPED (BERMEER) o 1IN - BT
Eﬁ;ﬁ%z AE(ZEZEZFBER) - A

RIAEERREREZE  EHAXNBEE
%%%QJ;‘J,HJ%Z%E o
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29.EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company for the year of approximately
RMB1,597,000 (2006: RMB15,563,000) and the
weighted average number of 360,000,000 (2006:
360,000,000) ordinary shares of the Company in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the
year is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company for the year of
approximately RMB1,597,000 (2006: RMB15,563,000)
and the weighted average number of 381,405,000
(2006: 375,900,000) ordinary shares after adjusting for
the effect of the dilutive potential ordinary shares to be
issued to the exercise of the options granted under all
relevant Share Option Schemes as detailed in note 28
below of 21,405,000 (2006: 15,900,000) shares,
calculated as follows:

1. Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company (diluted)

SEFLETASH-ALER

(a)

(b)

2.8 R AR

BREXEF

BRERBFNFAEDERFRALRAA
TBERBRELERZNOARK
1,597,000 (ZZEZNF : AR
15,568,0007T) R F WA AR B BITE
38 A% hn#E - 35 1% #360,000,000/% (==
T /N4 : 360,000,0000%) e

BRBERR

BREERFNNGTEDERFAKRA A
TBRBRELERNOARKE
1,697,000 (ZZEZERNF : ARK
15,563,0007T) & & 3 A% A0 1 T 15 AR 25
381,405,000 (= & & X &

375,900,0008%) © EFt# FEITHEE
BELBREITEEABERESS TR
HeERENZE (FFR T XHE28)
21,405,000/ (= & & X &

15,900,0004%) fEH A% « 5T EMT :

1. ARE]EBREKEEN DT (BF)

2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR T
Profit attributable to ordinary & 3@ M A% =
equity shareholders J& 15 Y4 7l 1,597,000 15,563,000
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates two share option schemes,
namely Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme as defined in directors’ report and herein.
A share option scheme was adopted and approved by
the sole shareholder of the Company on 31 March 2003,
pursuant to which the Company granted certain share
options to employees, directors and other participants
prior to the listing of the Company on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).
Another share option scheme was also adopted and
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 23
May 2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Both share option schemes will be valid for a period of
ten years commencing from 23 May 2003 pursuant to a
written resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 May
2003 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to directors and eligible employees and other
participants. Under both schemes, the Company may
grant options to eligible employees and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. In addition, under the Share Option
Scheme, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to any contractor, supplier, customer, agent
or advisor, of the Group at the discretion of the Board of
Directors.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon
acceptance of the grant of the options, The option has
no vesting period and each option gives the holders the

rights to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

30. B IR AT &

ARBETMBERKETS - NERAFAE
PRl R B N Bt 8 (EBRES
ERERAR) - ARAHE-RENR_FZF
== A=t BEARIE - RBERES
g - Bt NAFREARBRE R FIEIFER
LHAAER  EEREMBEERRET
BREE(TERARAERABRESS]) - K
RABRRR-_ZZ=FRAA-_T=BHMHK
B S —THBROER &) ([RBRERE) -

BERERNR-_ZZT=FRA-_T=BBBEZ
EEORZESR - MIERBBER 8 2 RAF I
BE-ZT=FRA-_t=HETF  EE
ZEANRAES  AEREEREMSESE
RURBHER - RIFBZMEATE - AT
ARARARENBARAEREERES
REBRE - URBARXRRD 5 - K
REIAIRIBEERET S RETERNETER
AEBEAAMNE  HER TP KL=
B[ 1% M R A -

KBREIBTAREABERER M - B
PerEdt EmERE ) - SEBUER TR B ARE
—RARBEBIZERN o
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30.BRAESE (&)

Terms and conditions of the options granted and existed FERFEH RIFE 2 B RRE 2 R R AR
at year end are as follows:

Number of
instruments Exercisable period
KREHE TS
Options granted to directors
RYTEE2BRE
on 20 June 2003 7,200,000 20 June 2003 - 19 June 2013
RZEZT=FA=+H —EE=FRNAZFtHE-_ZE—=FA+NH
on 2 March 2005 1,080,000 2 March 2005 — 1 March 2015
RZZETRFE=H=H —ETRF=-AHEZZE—RAF=H—H
on 10 August 2006 1,116,000 10 August 2006 — 30 August 2016
R-ZEZFENA+H —EERFNATHEZZE—XR"ENA=1+H
on 10 May 2007 1,922,000 10 May 2007 — 9 May 2017
R-ZEZTZ+FRHAT+AH —EELFRATHE=Z—LFRANHA
Options granted to employees
RTREE 2 BRE
on 20 June 2003 4,320,000 20 June 2003 - 19 June 2013
R-ZZTEE=FA=+H —EE=FXNA-tBHBE-_ZE—=F,A1+N1H
on 2 March 2005 812,000 2 March 2005 — 1 March 2015
R-ZZFETRF=H=H —EERF=-AZHEZZE-—RF=H—H
on 14 December 2005 288,000 14 December 2005 — 13 December 2015
R-ZZEZERF+-_A+MAE —ETRAE T _A+HAEZZE-—RAE+=ZA+=H
on 10 August 2006 2,052,000 10 August 2006 — 9 August 2016
RZZEZERENATH ZEERNFNATRE=ZZE—X~"FNANAB
on 10 May 2007 4,883,200 10 May 2007 — 9 May 2017
—EZt+FRATH 2+ FRATRAE=ZZE—tFRHANA
23,673,200
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(@) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

30.BRAESE (&)

() B ZEE RINEFHITEEDT

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
prices options prices options
InREFE g hnHE g
TEE BREHE TEE BREHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the RE HARITRE
beginning of the year 0.36 17,408,000 0.52 16,660,000
Granted during the year REAFH 0.62 7,568,000 0.36 4,118,400
Lapsed during the year R F R KK 0.44 (1,302,800) 0.48  (3,370,400)
Outstanding at the end 4R E RAT R
of the year 0.62 23,673,200 0.36 17,408,000
Exercisable at the end AR E AT
of the year 0.62 23,673,200 0.36 17,408,000

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for shares options exercised during the year
was HK$0.60 (2006: HK$0.52).

A supplementary agreement has signed that certain
conditions should be fulfilled before exercising the
options.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had
an exercise price of HK$0.62 (2006: HK$0.36) and
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7 years
(2006: 8 years).

FREITEZBERRENITE B H 2 N
FHRRE R0 T (ZEENE -
0.52/7T) °

E LB EITE R AEK 2 F TIRMF
FAGENCE

RZZBZLF+ A=+ —HHRITE
BREZTEERCEZETL (ZEETR
F:0.3687T) F EMEFHAFBRE LD
FHRTF(ZTTREF : 8F) °
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) The estimated fair value of the options is measured

30.BRAESE (&)

(b) E%HQ%ZH*"J?TEEE*WJ?E*ﬁﬁ%

based on Black-Scholes Model. The variables input HHAEEERXGE « st AKX 2 &
into the model are as follows: HT -
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
Weighted average share price REtE B Bz i
at measurement date T B HK$0.60 HK$0.53
0.607%& T 0.53% 7T
Weighted average exercise price INEEFEHITEE HK$0.625 HK$0.52
0.6257& T 0.52/8 T
Expected volatility (expressed as T8 B R g (A 5e —
weighted average volatility FRTHETERR
used in the modeling Bz nkEFH
of Black-Scholes Model) IR 1 7R 45.53% 42.1%
Option life (expressed as BAREA A (Rmhw —
weighted average life used in the FRGTHEEERAERAZ
modeling of Black-Scholes Model) INHE 198 % H 5| R) 10 years 10 years
g T
Expected dividends T8 HA AR B NIL NIL
Risk-free interest rate 1 [ e A1) B 3K 4.243% 4.3%
Weighted average fair value et = B Bz i
at measurement date EHAFEE HK$0.625 HK$ 0.31
0.6257& T 0.318 T

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life).
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could

materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
The condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated

with the share options granted.

T8 B R IR AR BB E 2K 08 (DA DN HE 5 F
HREMGE)  FAHRBREENKREF
H-IBBABRRIEDRAEEATEQT

@Zﬁﬁ o

B2 RN BN G RIBIRME - ZIRMFALR
MAFEREL A ERB 2 AFE - W&
MG REER L BEREERE -
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31.CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 10 September 2007, Venturepharm Laboratories
Limited, issued bonds of an aggregate principal amount
of CHF 15,000,000 (the “Bonds”). Unless previously
redeemed, repurchased and cancelled or converted, any
outstanding Convertible Notes shall be redeemed at the
Redemption Amount on the date falling on the fifth
anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible Notes.

The Noteholders will have the right to convert, at the
Conversion Price, the whole of the principal amount of
the Convertible Notes into Shares at any time and from
time to time, from the date of issue of the Convertible
Notes.

Noteholders may at any time during the period on or
after the date of issue of the Convertible Notes and prior
to the close of business on the Maturity Date or (i) if the
Company shall have exercised its rights to redeem the
Convertible Notes (Tax Redemption or Early Redemption),
then up to the fifth business day preceding the date
fixed for such redemption, (ii) if the Company shall be in
breach of its obligations under the terms of the Convertible
Notes (Event of Default), then up to the time when the
Convertible Notes become due and repayable, to convert,
at the Conversion Price, the whole or any part of the
Convertible Notes held by the Noteholders into Conversion
Shares.

The Company shall be entitled at any time while the
Convertible Notes are outstanding to redeem all
outstanding Convertible Notes at the Redemption Amount
provided that the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange for a period of 30 consecutive trading days is
at least 130% of the then applicable Conversion Price on

each such trading day.

31.

TR EZ

REZZFEZLFNA+H B2RBFEEGR
N AT 458 515,000,0005 058 2
&% ([E%]) - BRIELEHE TER - BEE R
iHE G - AR AR AIRRER 2 317
AEERAFE HUAED S EERERAE
BABRER -

E

RRFA AR A RRERETHRETSMA
B Ml I B 10 B IR B R B R R AR (B S 5 2 8D
AeBa Bk RRERKBRND

SEFAARNEARERRETEENR 2K
WHED BB EEXERAOBMEA 2 [
B E () ERRTTERD AT RERE (KR
WHEREFER) 2% AERERE
BzBEANFEREERE  (DERFER
HEHRNAEBRRBEERATHEE(RBOSE
) - ME A MERRIBAEER - &
BEERSRBERMAE AMBA N2 HER
B AT MR R RSB ARBED

HMEBMIMEE=1TERS A 2RO KEE
LRESENEZ RS A ERERZ KR

B HI130% @ AR A AHEE A BKRREH

REER  BREZBEONHEBERMESLR
FIZITI B E R AT AR -
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32.NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS NIRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2007, there was no BE_ZEZH+F T _A=+—RHILFE I
work-in-progress (2006: RMB6,262,000) transferred to EEYME (ZTEAF : AR¥6,262,000
new drug technology. T) B R R o

33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS B.EEHFEE
At 31 December 2007, there was no available-for-sales RZZEZLFT_A=1+—H  UELEFD
financial assets pledged (2006 restated: RMB19,248,000) BEHAHEESREEARK(ZZEER
to a bank to secure bank overdraft granted to the Group. &£ AR#19,248,0007T) ' IEAR T A
There is no utilisation of the general banking facilities as SEERTES 2EKB R 2T LF+H
at 31 December 2007. =+—H UEHAEHEN —RRITEE -

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34 &N AL
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REEER - REERE DA HEE S EH A5
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable M THREFZRRFEESAE
operating leases in respect of machinery, land and EmE T

buildings which fall due as follows:

2007 2006

—EELHF —ZETERF

RMB RMB

AR% T AR T

Within one year —F R 2,582 2,492
more than one year —FLAE

but within five years BEFNAN 8,535 9,014

Over five years iBiE A F 4,602 5,686

15,719 17,192
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34.

35.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its laboratories premises located at 1t 7 /&
BREMEFHE 5%, BEEEDRKEA6-2, GMPE
8, It RE R E P = FHEM M A K 1658 158 2 2/8 223 F and
O KR 8 KB 2795

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributed to a local municipal government
retirement scheme for all qualified employees in the PRC.
The employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at the rates and ceiling
specified in the PRC rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.
Contributions to the schemes are charged to the income
statement as incurred. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future

years.

The total cost charged to income statement of
approximately RMB862,000 (2006: RMB576,000)
represents contributions payable to the scheme by the
Group during the year.

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

4. BEHEIRIE (&)

KERANRBREASEHEZARENE
(PRt R EMNES S35 - BmE
B ORFEACB-2 « GMPER « 4t FEE R
78 = BRI 5 K 1657 15712 2/ 223 F K F
OMmAREBERSABE2279%) 2 EAESE -

35.3R K 18 I 5+ &

AEBERMAETEASEREERE T BA
BIRGTEIHFK - B RIEBHRZ T EIES
ZHELERERBRFBIELHER - AEE
SRR E 2 —BEERRBEAEELRE
AR o FT IR E £ B W e R ANBR o #E
BRI 2 AT RAEFIRCR R F R 2 FE A

TR -

W R T 2 @R AR # A R #862,0007T
(ZEEZRF : ARKS576,0007T) @ FEAE
BFEANFTEI BN ZHR -
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36. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Company had the following
significant transactions with certain related parties

36. BEXRZ

(@ ARARARFARETHBEAL (RE
RIRRIFERES LM AR A Z ERBARME

which also deemed to be connected persons as BMEAL) CEARZHAT :

defined by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the GEM:

Name of

connected person Nature 2007 2006

EREALTEE A= —EBELHE ZEERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T T

VP Inc. Revenue

Y z5

— Contracted research and

development, pharmaceutical

application, registration and

testing services

— BRI R RFAEE -

At it Ko OBl B AR 7

- 564
HERH -

The above transactions were carried out in

accordance with the terms agreed by both parties.

Balances with these related parties as at 31
December 2007 are set out in note 21.

LERRZTIRETT B E 2 IRHHEST ©
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36. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

For the purpose of Group’s expansion in drugs
development, on 4 March 2004, the Group entered
into an agreement with Hainan Pioneer
Pharmaceutical Ltd (“Hainan Pioneer”), an unlisted
investment (note 17) of the Group for construction of
production plant in Hainan. The total consideration
was RMB3,740,000. RMB3,240,000 was paid 15
days after signing the agreement. The remaining
RMB500,000 was paid upon completion. However,
the production plant was registered in the name of
Hainan Pioneer and the Group has the right to use
Further

agreement would be signed if the production plant is

for 20 years without further charges.

continuous to be used by the Group in future. Such
balance was included in unlisted investment as at 31
December 2007.

Key personnel management:

Remuneration for key personnel management,
including amount paid to the Company’s directors
and certain of the highest paid employee, as disclosed
in note 10, is as follows:

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

36. BEXS (#)

(o) BEREALTZREESR -

RASEEREYBRE  R_ZETNHEF
= AmAE NEEEEIFEWRE (K
&£ 17) Hainan Pioneer Pharmaceutical
Ltd ([Hainan Pioneer]|) 5t 1A /8 m A H3#
SEBEIUHE BREAARE
3,740,0007T * BN FEAT &L 16K X
it A R#3,240,0007T > 825 A R #&
500,0007C E R TR X - o AT - &
= 8% B A Hainan Pioneer2 & & & &2
REBBREFER20FMBAZ T EE
— B MARAEEFEERZE
ERE - AIEEIE— Pz - Bl
EREHRTAZTELF T _A=+—
HZzIELMIRER o

FEEBRAER :

TEEBRABZHE (BEME10MEK
BONARREERETRSFERLZ
R W

2007 2006

“EELHF ZETR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Salaries and allowances e KOER 713 715
Share-based payment expenses B9+ 5 FI 2 - (205)
713 510
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M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 & =

37.

38.

39.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

During the year, the Group received RMB597,700 of
government subsidy (2006: RMB14,000) towards the
research and development projects.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group and Company has
no significant contingent liabilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of
financial instruments and specifically to currency risk,
interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result
from both its operating and investing activities. Other
price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarter, in
close monitor with the board of directors, and focuses
on actively securing the Group’s short to medium term
cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial
markets. Long term financial investments are managed
to generate lasting returns. The Group does not actively
engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does it write options. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are
described below.

SEFLETASH-ALER

37. BWIF & B

FA - AEEBHTT &I B T

B AR¥597,0007T (ZEERNF : ARK
14,0007T) °

38. RARERE
NRZZEEZLE+_A=1+—0  "EBER

N

RETEEAKARERE °

BEBREEEERBE

AEEHRERERITAMARI SRR @ &
HRREKERREXRBMES ZINER
2~ FIRERRERRR - EAAERRRTD

EeRTAZAFEIBRAESRENER

B ATOTA 2 BB (mﬂYﬂ 2 3 SN IE B
FREEMBRIN  MAmEBRESHEHTE
Dzl @Iﬂjﬁﬁﬁ%mli P EM

SREENMAERAUERIANERME
ﬁ°$%@2ﬂ@ﬁ@$@%%f'ﬁm%
EEEYEE IERRRERIEESR
m%%ﬁ%ﬁ%i¢%2ﬁim@°ﬂk’
AEBBEAEFHRPEBREAEERED
B AEEUTEEREREENZSRE
ERZ W MTETHE AEEARXZ&ZK
PR EMMT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M % & R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HEZ-ZTZELF+-_A=+—HIFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

.EBEEEBEREE &)

39.1 Currency risk 39.1 SMEE EL RS

Currency risk to the Group is minimal as most of the
Group’s transactions are carried out in Hong Kong
dollars. All businesses in the Mainland China that are
exposed to higher currency risk have been disposed
of during the year.

39.2 Interest rate risk

As the Group has interest-bearing assets and
liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are affected by changes in market interest rate.
However the management estimated that the effect
of increase/decrease of 100% basis points in the
interest rate up to the next annual balance sheet
date will be insignificant.

39.3 Other price risk

The Company is exposed to other price risk in respect
of its investment in subsidiaries. The sensitivity to
price risk in regards to the investment in subsidiaries
cannot be reliably determined due to numerous
uncertainties regarding the future development of
these subsidiaries.

HRANEEABDNRZUNETER
RS E RS E B B M S MEKE - £
EHEMEARERIIERR ZBEAZE
& o

39.2 Al = & k&

HRASEHEEHRENEEREE B
AR E 2 WA R LIRS IRE M5
RBEITE  c AMEBREMT ARG
m/ M0 ESEETEFELE
HIIERZZEBDTRK o

39.3 H ftb & 4% /& B

AEBRERHMBARZIRERZ Kb
BERER - RERWBRRBEZER
WWF'Iﬁ&QEW%“TZyET
MEREXMTENSEHET -
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39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

.EBEEEBEREE &)

39.4 Credit risk V4 EERK
AEEMAZHNESEERRTIERE
FHERRANSREEMNRAE  HF
ZR

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the
balance sheet date, as summarised below:

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Class of financial assets CREEER -FRAEB
— carrying amounts
Financial assets at fair value BEATEBERERGLTERZ
through profit or loss TREE 72,409 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEED 30,803 10,221
Trade receivables FEW Z 5 Bk X 30,721 18,023
Prepayments, deposits and FERNRE - ZEek
other receivables H & W k08 34,841 17,823
Amount due from related JE Wt B8 3 A~ Bl 5K IR
companies 629 1,296
Work-in-progress £ & 66,503 46,934
235,906 94,297

141



142

BERBEEARASE — ST LFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

39.4 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identifies either
individually or by group, and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls. Where available
at reasonable cost, external reports on customers
and other counterparties are obtained and used. The
Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties.

The Group’s management considers that all the above
financial assets that are not impaired for each of the
reporting dates under review are of good credit
quality, including those that are past due.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure
to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. The
credit risk for liquid funds is considered negligible,
since the counterparties are reputable banks with high

quality external credit ratings.

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

.EBEEEBEREE &)

V4EERK (&)

AEE N EEEENKFAERR KA
X ZHHBRIER  YREEEES
EZRELEHR - EEBHOKAEAT K&
EeMAAERER hEMLR ST RSN
WE - AKENERRAREFEFENT
FERXS -

AEE 2 EBEBREMENRLRIERE
MEMEE  BRETEANN =8
REFMEELR -

AEBEZEREERBNERRAER
Hog i A o

ERERA R EMERREMS - A%
B Y EEAEBAEERBRETRER D
REFEABROKENXZZ AR - H
RAKE 2R ES T ERRNEERLT
WEERIMEEEFRART - FHibiA
BEERBRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

39.5 Liquidity risk

HE-_ZTTLF+-_A=1+—HLFE

.EBEEEBEREE &)

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully

monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for

long-term financial liabilities as well as cash-outflows

due in day-today business. Liquidity needs are

monitored on a day-to-day basis. The Group

maintains mainly sufficient cash and current financial

assets to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 30-

day periods.

As at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006,
the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual

maturities which are summarised below:

39.5 % BY 1 = B

AEBETEFEREREFNRPEBHE
RAMAFEEEECHNRE NP UERE
HRSRPME - AEREERERNTE
NERERSRER - ARBETIZ2UH
RARHNAEMRBEREENERS
ZIHZRBESHFE -

R-_EE+F+_A=+—HE_ZZ
NE+T-A=1+—8 A&EEZHEE
HEHEHNEREEISHOT

1t03 41012 1102 3105
months months years years
—E=f@ HEE+=E —E=F =ERE
ARz ARz R AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB ‘000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT
At 31 December 2007 RZETLF
+=-A=+—8©
Convertible bonds AR E S - - - 95,936
Trade payables ERE SRR 14 = 271 95,936
As 31 December 2006 R-ZTENRF
+=—A=+—8©
Trade payables FER & 5 BR®K 52 - 411 —
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39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES .EBEEEBEREE &)

(Continued)
39.6 Summary of financial assets and liahilities by category
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

and liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2007
and 2006 may be categorised as follows. See notes

WERER T Bz ERHEEREEHE

AEER-ZE+F+-A=+—ARK
::ng/\ﬁ3+ A= ﬁ_ Efiﬁg %Y%
MEERBEAIDENAT - BHESHT

3.9 and 3.13 for explanations about how the category BoBEmAgEERR2lE B2
of financial instruments affects their subsequent BB 5E3.9 % 3.13 o
measurement.
(i) Financial assets () =HEE
2007 2006
—EELE ZEERF
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR T
Bank balances and cash MITEBRER S 30,803 10,221
Work-in-progress £ & 66,503 46,934
Loans and receivables: B R EWSRIE
Trade receivables FEW B 5 BRI 30,721 18,023
Prepayment, deposits and FEMFRIE - e &k
other receivables Eﬁwﬁuﬂz KIA 34,841 17,823
Amounts due from related JE Wt B8 3 A Bl 5K IR
companies 629 1,296
Financial assets at fair value BRATEBREBERLERZ
through profit or loss TREE 72,409 —
235,906 94,297
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39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

39.6 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category(Continued)

(i) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

.EBEEEBEREE &)

WERBR I B 2ERMEERAEHE (B)

(i) £EEE

HBHERAHEZERAE -

2007 2006

—EELHF ZEERF

RMB RMB

AR% T AR T

Current liabilities mENBE 285 463

Trade payables FERTE 5 RN 5,237 1,085

Accruals and other payables P& 5T K H b FE < 3B 24,207 5,507

Receipts in advance TE W R IR - 54

Dividend payable J& 1-F AR 2 - 6,451

Interest-bearing borrowings FRSNEE 6,060 5,349

Tax payable FE S B IR 3 =

Bank overdraft RITHEX 35,792 18,909
Non-current liabilities ERBA G

Convertible bonds AR ESH 95,936 =
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40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i) to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern;

(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders;
(ili) to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and

(iv) to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers
and acquisitions.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion
to its overall financing structure. The Group manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt. The capital-to-overall financing
ratio at balance sheet date was as follows:

40.EXRER

AEEZEREENBZRNOT :

() BMEANEEBRENAUAFELE

(iy BIREFERFTEHE R
(i) IRFAEBZIRFERE; &

(iv) IREERAES G R U -

AEERERRENEB LI VEASHE -
AEEERHEERER  XRBEBEBIK
HEEZRUEFELRENAE - BRTRER
HABREEAGE  AKEREEHBRET
BRZEE  EBERTEER - BITHEX
HEBENRERRB RNEER > BEXEE
ERMELERWT :

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Capital =N
Total equity 1R 123,236 122,136
Overall financing EREmE
Convertible bonds AR E S

liability components & &6 17 95,936 —
Capital-to-overall financing ratio ~ & AN (G B G & b = 1.28 N/A

41.APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
to issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2008.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEME#BE

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
e “EENE ZFTRE ZETRF  ZEFRtF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR AR%®Tr ARBTnt AR%Tx
Turnover ] 35,680 36,157 42,157 57,052 38,729
Profit before taxation BR %% Al & A1 21,994 11,480 6,403 18,773 1,888
Taxation I (1,506) (881) (887) (3,175) (788)
Profit after taxation before BB BB R DH
minority interests AR 2R 4 25 Al 4 Al 20,488 10,599 5,516 15,598 1,100
Minority interests DR R (128) 84 128 (35) 497
Profit for the year after MR D EREERE 2
minority interest R E 5 A 20,360 10,683 5,644 15,563 1,597
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
Year ended 31 December
HET-A=T-HLEE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Z3%=% ZIENE “3TR% ZIT5E ZEELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Total assets less current liabilties BEERRYAR 91,031 102,135 106,398 122,136 219,172
Non current liabilities FrBaR
Corporate bonds payable ERAAES - - - - (95,936)
Minority interests PURRES (870) (3,190) (3,054) (3,089) (2,592)
Shareholders’ funds hE&s 90,161 98,945 103,344 119,047 120,644
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